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NEIEM
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIEF
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 754 22

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
BE-Z—=f% Hz—T——fF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
WFE IEFE
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTL AEBIT
Revenue [SE 2] 12,798.3 12,483.2
EBITDA* KBRS BB 78
B ADER 2,185.9 2,190.1
Profit before tax* FR %4 A% Fl* 1,334.0 1,374.5
Net profit attributable to owners of the Company 72 T158 A BG4 F]
— Underlying net profit* — E ARG 1,148.0 1,192.9
- Reported net profit — BRI AR 1,207.2 1,163.9
Earnings per share BRER
- Based on underlying net profit* — ARG FE e HKB9.8 centsi Ll
— Based on reported net profit —EEEAFEE HK40.2 centsj# il HK38.8 cents)# (Il
Full-year dividend per share BREFRE L dee L HK17.0 centsiAl
— Interim dividend per share —SlRPHRE HKS5.0 centsj# ] HK5.0 centsi 1l
— Proposed final dividend per share — A ERRCOR AR S HK12.0 cents/&{ll HK12.0 cents;& 1Ll
Dividend payout ratio* TR S E e 44% 43%
Net asset value per share BEREEFRE HK$4.31;5 T HK$3.94/% 7T
Net gearing FEBLE 21% 16%
Revenue Net Profit attributable to owners of
EER the Company
AAREFE AELEF
o HKS$ Million
b 13,055 13,205 2,400
13,500 12,43312,798 ’
12,000 2,100
10,427 1,793
10,500 ©0128 1,800 '
9,071 1,638
9,000 garz 1,500 1,304*
7,500 . 1,200 1078 1,177 1198y 1 4gr
6,000 '
4,660 900
4,500
2,973 600
3,000 388
1,500 300
0 0
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
*Excluding: TEIE
2013:  Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of —E-=F REMEATEEHZWE T A —TEB T RUK
HK$72.1 million and share-based payments of HK$12.9 BEAGR—FZBLTEST
million
2012:  Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$1.8 ZEIF  REANERVEED W BN\ T BT RN
million and share-based payments of HK$30.8 million ANH=FENT+EBT
2011:  Share-based payments of 69.1 milion —T——fF: LAH%JJH/EKHTA/\:FTLE +E8&T
2010:  Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments of —E-TF  HEAHBEREZRE—ERAT AR TEST
HK$156.4 million
2009:  Discount on acquisition of HK$11.2 million and impairment —ETHE : WETE T e -t T RAMMHEEREZRER
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$156.4 million B—ERTAEN+EET
# Calculated base on underlying net profit # LARA ARG E
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am delighted to report to our
shareholders that Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) delivered resilient results for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 (“FY13”). The US market delivered a positive
rebound, while the Chinese economy maintained its steady growth. Sales of
electronic products, such as smart phones continued to thrive, especially in
emerging markets. Our management team adopted an aggressive strategy
to capture market share growth. Hence, the Group achieved record highs
in both production volume and shipment volume for FY13 and achieved a
shipment volume of 12 million square metres in one single month. Group
revenue increased by 3% to HK$12,798 million. Focusing on the Chinese
domestic market, we continued to expand our Chinese domestic market
penetration, Renminbi (“RMB”) sales of the Group increased further to
account for 59% of our total revenue.

E 3 AEI]

AANERRESFS  MARSLBRIM - 2
ERERERARAR (AR REKMBAR
(EBDREBE-_Z—=+-"A=+—H
B FEXERER OB _T—=F X
BIMSERRR  TEEHERE R B2
DFRSEFEMETETSHEBE -
i 5 B & 32 2 i) EE B ) 3% R SR S - AL EAUS
BRERY - BN REERERZEEER
HEEHEH= YA TEABE-—T-A
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B RTHEMS  ARKEERLHERRE
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—BZttHEATNBEET -

Turnover Breakdown by Product & £ %85

FY2013
—E-=HUBFE

. Glass Epoxy Laminates
REFKBHEBRER

Paper Laminates

AR

Il Upstream Materials*
i

FY2012
—EFHHFE

[ Properties® Others”
BinE® Hiw'

* Upstream Materials including copper foil, epoxy resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper

@ Properties mainly comprised rental income

# Others comprised drilling services and PVB
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

BUSl N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Capacity utilization improved in 2013. Average copper prices were lower
in 2013 than 2012 and this resulted in lower average selling prices for our
products. At the same time, rising operating costs impacted the Group’s
operating margin. As a result, underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring
items) for the Group was down marginally by 4% to HK$1,148 million.
Bracing a tough operating environment, the Group delivered profitable results
and continued to maintain a robust balance sheet.

Income from property investment attributable to the Group increased
substantially by more than 70% to HK$128.3 million. Enjoying a high
occupancy rate, the investment properties portfolio generated steady and
attractive returns for the Group. Pre-sale of our residential projects has
delivered excellent results. Units launched for Kunshan Development Zone
Kingboard Yu Garden, in the second half of 2013, have all been taken up by
buyers.

The Board proposes a final dividend of HK12 cents per share subject to the
shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim dividend of HK5 cents per
share paid in September 2013, this will constitute a total dividend of HK17
cents per share for the full year, representing a payout ratio of 44%.

PERFORMANCE

Laminates shipment volume and capacity utilization improved in 2013
compared with the previous year. Group consolidated revenue was
HK$12,798 million. Sales volume increased 12% against last year, with
average monthly shipment of 9.05 million square metres. Revenue from
composite epoxy material laminates (‘CEM”) and glass epoxy laminates (“FR4”)
accounted for 59% of Group turnover, while paper laminates sales accounted
for 20% in 2013. The balance mainly comprised sales of upstream materials
and others. The decline in the average selling price for laminates was offset
by operational efficiency improvements and higher capacity utilization,
enabling the Group to maintain its gross profit margin at 15.6%. Earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) (excluding non-
recurring items) remained level with 2012 at around HK$2,185.9 million.

Shipment volume increased during the year, but distribution costs remained
at a similar level as last year as a result of operational efficiency improvements
and strict cost control. Administrative costs were up 4% to HK$437.4
million. Finance costs rose to HK$124.8 million in 2013 against last year. The
effective tax rate was similar to the previous year at 13.2%.
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our consolidated financial and liquidity position remained robust. As at 31
December 2013, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$7,983.9 million (31 December 2012 — HK$7,977.2 million)
and 2.97 (31 December 2012 — 3.46), respectively.

The net working capital cycle decreased to 111 days as at 31 December
2013 from 114 days as at 31 December 2012 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, maintained at 44 days
as the Group continued its tight control over inventories to maintain a
low inventory level (31 December 2012 — 44 days).

- Trade receivables, including amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, in
terms of debtors turnover days, increased to 107 days (31 December
2012 — 103 days).

- Trade and bills payables, including amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
in terms of creditors turnover days, increased to 40 days (31
December 2012 — 33 days).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents to total equity) increased to 21% (31 December 2012
- 16%). In 2013, the Group invested HK$473.2 million in new production
capacities and HK$2,066.0 million in its property business — of which
HK$263.5 million was earmarked for acquisition of Hong Kong investment
properties, HK$1,802.5 million for settlement of balance payments for
land acquired in 2012 and payments for construction in progress. With an
experienced professional management team and a solid business foundation
with sound financial strength, the Group is confident that these investments
will deliver satisfactory returns to shareholders in future. The ratio of bank
borrowings between short term and long term stood at 30% : 70% (31
December 2012: 30% : 70%). Meanwhile, the Group maintained sufficient
financial strength to capture future business opportunities in the market. Al
bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy.
The Group did not enter into any material derivative financial instruments
throughout the year. There was no material foreign exchange exposure
for the Group during the year under review. The Group’s revenue, mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars, was fairly matched
with the currency requirement of operating expenses.
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of approximately
9,700 (831 December 2012: 8,900). In addition to offering competitive salary
packages, the Group grants share options and discretionary bonuses to
eligible employees based on the Group’s overall financial achievements and
employees’ individual performance.

PROSPECTS

Customer order intake showed signs of strong and stable momentum at the
onset of 2014. The Chinese government is pushing ahead with economic
reforms to maintain sustained and steady economic growth. Progressive
urbanization aims to expand domestic consumption, which in turn will drive
demand for electronic products, especially smart phones and consumer
products in China. Management is optimistic about the prospects for
business growth in 2014.

The Group will continue to invest in product mix enhancements to capture
Chinese domestic business opportunities in order to expand our market share
in thin and high-performance laminates and capture new growth sectors such
as LED related products.

In order to meet the demand from downstream capacity expansion and
maintain our successful vertical integration business model, the Group plans
to increase the capacity of upstream materials production. A new expansion
phase of the Lianzhou glass fabric plant and a new glass yarn plant in
Qingyuan, Guangdong province, will commence production in 2014.

In the first two months of 2014, the Group’s property business has continued
to deliver good growth momentum, demonstrating high occupancy rates in
investment properties. At the end of 2013, the Group owned a land bank with
gross floor area of approximately 1.3 million square metres located in China
at prime locations in Kunshan and Jiangyin, Jiangsu province.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past financial
year.

Cheung Kwok Wa
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREBABZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wa, aged 50, is an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined Kingboard Chemical Holdings
Limited (“KCHL”) in 1988 and has over 25 years’ experience in the marketing
of a wide range of industrial products. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction and goals for
the Group. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 20086.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Keung, aged 61, is an executive Director and the
Managing Director of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors, and an uncle of
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1991
and has over 22 years’ experience in the laminate industry. He is responsible
for the overall implementation of the strategic plans and goals of the Group.
Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 20086.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ping, aged 53, is an executive Director. He is a brother
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung, both being executive
Directors, and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr.
Cheung joined KCHL in 1988 and has over 25 years’ experience in marketing.
He is mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing operations and is also the
general manager of the paper laminate factories in Fogang and Shaoguan,
the PRC. Mr. Cheung is also an executive director of Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited (“KBCF”), a 64.57%-owned subsidiary of the Company as
at the end of reporting period and whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung was appointed as
an executive Director in May 2006.

Mr. LAM Ka Po, aged 57, is an executive Director. Mr. Lam is a co-founder
of KCHL and has over 25 years’ experience in the sales and distribution of
laminates. Mr. Lam is also the chairman and executive director of KBCF. He
was appointed as an executive Director in November 2006.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENSREBANEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (oninueq)

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Ho, aged 30, is an executive Director. Mr. Cheung is the
nephew of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, all being executive Directors. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 2004
and is involved in the laminate marketing operations for the southern region
of China and also the general manager of glass epoxy laminate factory in
Thailand. He was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. LIU Min, aged 45, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL in 1998. Mr.
Liu graduated from Harbin University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 7 years’ experience in the
copper foil industry. He was appointed as an executive Director in November
2006.

Mr. ZHOU Pei Feng, aged 45, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL
in 1999 and is the general manager of four glass epoxy laminate facilities
in Shenzhen, Fogang, Jiangmen and Jiangyin, the PRC. Mr. Zhou holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Chongaging University
and a Master’s Degree in Material Processing Engineering from Jilin Industrial
University (now known as Jilin University). He was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 40, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lo is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo joined KCHL in May 1999 and is in charge of KCHL'’s
company secretarial work. Prior to joining KCHL, he was an accountant at
an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2006.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENSREBANEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 62, joined as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chan is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the
Chairman of the publicly-listed Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. He is also a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited, Pacific
Textiles Holdings Limited, and Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited,
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan formerly was a professional
city planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Arts and a Master’s degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration, and is bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnam University.
He is also a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan
District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan acts as the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and serves on
the executive committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association,
the general committee of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the
Adviser of the Quality Tourism Service Association, and the Chairman of the
Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management
Association. Mr. Chan is also a member of the Business Facilitation Advisory
Committee appointed by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 67, joined as an independent non-executive
Director in November 2006. Mr. Leung is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company, and a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Hong Kong University in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting
and auditing matters, having worked in the auditing profession for over 30
years, 20 years of which he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions
Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995
to 1997. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is
also an independent non-executive director of the companies listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings
Limited and G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENSREBANEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. MOK Yiu Keung, Peter, aged 62, joined as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Mok is also a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Mok is the chairman of Biu Chun Watch Hands &
Parts Manufacturers Limited and has over 33 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry. Mr. Mok pursued a Master’s degree at Yanshan
University in 2003. He served as the Vice Chairman of the Watch Parts &
Equipment Exhibition in 1997 and the Chairman in 1998 and 1999. He was
the Vice President and later the Executive Vice President of the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries from 1999 to 2001 and from 2001
to 2003, respectively. Mr. Mok joined the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance in
1998 as the Command President of Dental Command. Mr. Mok is currently
the vice chairman of the China Horologe Association, the Honorary vice
President of Shenzhen Watch & Clock Association and the President of the
Hong Kong Rangers Football Club.

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 62, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2011. Mr. Ip is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ip graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Sciences in 1973. Mr.
Ip joined the Hong Kong Government in November 1973 and was promoted
to the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government (“HKSAR Government”) as a
Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. Ip
in the past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for Labour,
Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. Ip
took up the position of Secretary for Economic Development and Labour on
1 July 2002. His portfolio in respect of economic development covered air
and sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal services,
meteorological services, competition and consumer protection. He was
also responsible for labour policies including matters relating to employment
services, labour relations and employees’ rights. Mr. Ip retired from the
HKSAR Government in July 2007. Mr. Ip received the Gold Bauhinia Star
award from the HKSAR Government in 2001, and is an unofficial Justice of
the Peace. Mr. Ip was an independent non-executive director of Viva China
Holdings Limited from June 2010 to March 2013, a company listed on the
GEM board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip was also an independent non-
executive director of Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited from October
2010 to March 2013, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and an non-executive director of Milan Station Holdings Limited
from April 2011 to March 2013, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip also serves as an independent non-executive director
on the boards of four companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, namely China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Synergis
Holdings Limited, Lai Sun Development Company Limited and Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENSREBANEZEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHANG Guo Qiang, age 46, joined KCHL in 2002 and is the general
manager of the glass fabric factories in Shenzhen and Lianzhou, the PRC.
Mr. Chang graduated from Hunan Chang Sha University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Textiles. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 14 years’ experience in
the glass fabric industry.

Mr. HU Guo Liang, age 57, joined KCHL in 2000 and is the general manager
of the glass yarn factory in Panyu Nansha, the PRC. Mr. Hu graduated from
the East China University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Material Science Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 19
years’ experience in the glass yarn industry.

Mr. TSOI Kin Lung, aged 38, joined KCHL in November 2003. Prior to that,
he was an accountant at an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsoi is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company secretarial work and
financial management of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEWE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 52.

An interim dividend of HK5 cents per share was paid to the shareholders of
the Company during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK12 cents per share to the shareholders on the register of
members of the Company on 3 June 2014, and the retention of the remaining
profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWE

RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 56.

In addition to the accumulated profits of the Company, the share premium
and special reserve of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2013, the sum of the accumulated profits, the share

premium and the special reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$7,348,244,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2013,
resulting in an increase in fair value of approximately HK$72,110,000 which
has been credited directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$473,161,000 was incurred during the year
primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group. Details of all the
changes during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
approximately HK$3,237,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEWE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Lam Ka Po, Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, being executive
Directors, and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being an independent non-executive
Director, will retire from directorship by rotation and will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service contract with the
Company regarding his appointment which shall continue subject to the
terms and conditions thereof and such terms as may be agreed between the
parties from time to time. Each service contract will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, who was appointed by the
Board as an independent non-executive Director on 4 May 2011) had
been appointed for an initial term of two years commencing in November
2006. In addition, the appointment of Mr. Lo Ka Leong as a non-executive
Director will continue after the initial term unless terminated by three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. The appointment of the
independent non-executive Directors will continue after the initial term unless
otherwise agreed between the parties. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 9 to 13.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company) and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long position
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”)

EEREEZRBEN @

bPEREZ EREFBERIINFEIOEIBETEER
SREBANEBZER ]| -

BREANREERRBEFASERETZES
BEEAEEFTAERN IR —FANHEARE
OEERERIN M L2 RIEEL o

EEZR{ER

RITB—=F+_"A=+—H EF(BEEAR
AMEFARKE) RNEFZBHBARARAR RE
BB (ER LEF LB GRO(TEFRIE
1 D EXVER) 2 Bn ~ MERARRISKIE ST -
BARRIREES MR FRGIEI2GFELE
M AR ek 2 # s SHIRIE E M EITAESHE
TREFRXHHRETRE MG ARRE RE AT
ZREZIT

RR
(a) AATEREEIOGETZEBER (TR
# 1)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

Number of of the Company

issued shares o NN
Name of Director Capacity held BEITRA
BEEgE ERtE e #ITROHE ZHBHAED
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa' Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 9,132,000 0.304
R EE S A EnlA AN TR
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 89,000 0.003
RRFRFE BEmBEAA
Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter Interest of spouse 200,000 0.007
Rk sed iRt e
Note: B e

1 75,000 KLHL'’s shares were held by his spouse.

1 75,000% B & BRI 0 i EL AL B 5
5o
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)

(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”)

Name of Director Capacity
BEEgE EmME

EEEZﬂﬁﬁHEEig

RE®)
(b) AARBEBREEBEBRE]

Interest in underlying shares
pursuant to Share Options

BB REE AR R

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa

SREIZE & Xt Z=PN
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner
SREE S Xt =N
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
KRBT Emfia A
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MREFRE Xt Z=PUN
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner
RRFRFE Xt Z=PUN
(c) Non-voting deferred shares in the share capital of Kingboard

Laminates Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Beneficial owner

12,500,000
11,500,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

() FATZEHAZHBEIRARERER
BRATRAFNERRRIELRD

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held

Name of Director Capacity FrisERERIEL

EEHE EREE ROBE
(Note)
(P 5E)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,058,000

REIEE LA EREEA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 529,000

SREIs8 S A EREEA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 952,200

KRBTSR EREEA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 581,900

MEELE BEmBEAA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(d) Ordinary shares in the share capital of KCHL, the ultimate

EEZROER @

RE®)

d FRRBKERIAEBFLCIRESH

holding company of the Company a3 IR
Approximate
percentage of
Number the issued
of issued share capital
ordinary of KCHL
shares held HEFELET
Name of Director Capacity Fride &7 BRITRA
EEME ERtE ZERROEE ZHBHEDL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa' Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 7,422,800 0.724
R B EE S A ERBBE ATk
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping? Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 3,382,383 0.330
R BT 5 A2 ERBBE ATk
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 2,917,360 0.284
MREFRE BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 532,422 0.052
SREE S Xt =N
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 384,000 0.037
RRFRFE Xt/ =N
Mr. Liu Min3 Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 231,800 0.023
Eoll= Geta s ERBBE ATk
Notes: Bt eE
1 74,400 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse. 1 74,4000 B L TR B EBRBRA -
2 36,000 KCHL’s shares were held by his spouse. 2 36,0008 2B T E R BHEA -
8 111,800 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse. 3 111,800 A% 3 S5 1t TRR {p A H BB 45
ﬁ °

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=4 4 10



a0

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES conteg =82 BRGREZS o)

Long position (continued) RE®)
(e) Share options of KCHL (e) EE T B
Interest in
underlying shares
of KCHL
pursuant to
share options
Name of Director Capacity BLABREET
BEEgE ERtE EE{IEEROER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 2,928,000

REIsR A BESlEAA

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of Elec ()
& Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a fellow

AAFERMBLARANRZEEERR
AF(TEEICH) BRAHHEBER ([EEIC

subsidiary of the Company 1)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital

issued EEIC of EEIC

Shares held {5EEIC

Name of Director Capacity e 1T BEITRA

EEHR EEME EEICER A8 B ZBHBEDH

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 706,200 0.378
SREIZE S & Emfia A

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 500,000 0.267
SRE TSR EmfiaA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
MREFLE EmfiaA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company) nor their respective associate,
had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2013.

B EiiiFEEEN R E—=F+_A=1+—
H $IEEE(EEARARZESHLE)RE
EEAVHEATRARRR S ETEEEE
(EEREHREEKRGIEXVEL) Z ERRD -
AR XN ESFTEL T ERSKEE -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (including the
exercise price, exercise period and vesting period) are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the share options during the year:

BEROIEZ 2ZH

B B3R FRSN - AR A - BIER AR S E A
B 8 ) S [R) 2R A B % B 1A B P AT R e BT
SHETTER R BEEFAEBALLF
SAEMEAEABRRZ RO HESF R -

BB E

ARBZBEBEAE B ZFHB(BIEITEE
1T I N SR8 ) B AR B B TS AR MY £33

TREBELERERFAZED

Outstanding

Outstanding as at
as at 31.12.2013
1.1.2013 Granted  Exercised Transferred Lapsed R=ZF—=f
R-B—=F during during between during +=A
—HB—H the year theyear categories the year =+—H
HATE RERRE RERTE EHIFEBE KREREX i RATHE

Category 1: Directors E1f:EF
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa REIEE LA 12,500,000 - - - - 12,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung  3REI58 % 4 11,500,000 - - - - 11,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping REIF A 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Mr. Lam Ka Po MRERE 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho RRRLE 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
54,000,000 - - - - 54,000,000
Category 2: Employees EoME : EB 46,000,000 - - - - 46,000,000
Total all categories B ERAE 100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=4 % 21



a0

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company), the following shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

EECERGHRR

AAR - BEERAT - ARMBARXMEL

BRI MR FE

sk A E I D

REYMEFERNFXBEAEARBZEX

BHY -

FERR
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Long position BE
Shares gy
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
issued shares of the Company
held HZARAT
Name of shareholder Notes  Nature of interest Frise 817 ERBITRAZ
RERER Mz REREE ROEE BHBESH
Hallgain Management Limited (@), (b)  Interest of controlled 2,224,089,000(L) 74.14
(“Hallgain”) corporations
RS EE R R
KCHL Beneficial owner 134,078,000(L) 4.47
BE(tT Xt =N
(€ Interest of controlled 2,090,011,000(L) 69.67
corporations
PG EE R R
Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“damplan”) Beneficial owner 1,790,000,000(L) 59.67
Xt =N
(d) Interest of controlled 300,011,000(L) 10.00
corporation
TR Am s
Capital Research and Management Investment manager 177,205,851(L) 5.91
Company WERIR
Citigroup Inc. (e Investment manager 174,619,675(L) 5.82
WEKIE 415,366(S) 0.01
19,952,342(P) 0.67
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position (continued)

Notes:

(@)

At 31 December 2013, (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors are not accustomed to
act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok
Wa, Cheung Kwok Ping and Lam Ka Po, all of whom are Directors, are also directors
of Hallgain.

The interests are held by KCHL directly and indirectly. KCHL is owned as to
approximately 35.40% of the entire issued capital of KCHL by Hallgain as at 31
December 2013.

The interests are held by Jamplan directly and indirectly. Jamplan is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of KCHL. Mr. Lam Ka Po, being a Director, is also a director of Jamplan.

The interests are indirectly held by Jamplan through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Kingboard Investments Limited (“KIL”). Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wa and Cheung
Kwok Ping, being Directors, are also directors of KIL.

Citigroup Inc. wholly controlled (a) Citigroup Holdings Inc., a company wholly
controlled Citibank N.A., was interested in a long position of 19,952,342 shares
as a beneficial owner; (b) Citigroup Global Market Holdings Inc., a company wholly
controlled Citigroup Financial Products Inc..

Umbrella Asset Services Hong Kong Limited, which was interested in a long position
of 25,678,500 Shares and a short position of 6,333 Shares as a beneficial owner,
was wholly controlled by Citigroup Financial Products Inc..

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., which was interested in a long position of 51,386,000
Shares as a beneficial owner, was wholly controlled by Citigroup Financial Products
Inc..

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC and Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance AG. Citigroup
Global Markets Limited, which was interested in a long position of 77,596,833
Shares and a short position of 409,033 Shares as a beneficial owner, was wholly
controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Europe Limited, which was 64.67% controlled
by Citigroup Financial Products Inc., 35.22% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC and 0.11% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets (International)
Finance AG.

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets
Switzerland Holding GmbH. Citigroup Global Markets Overseas Finance Limited,
which was 51.86% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance
AG and 48.14% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Switzerland Holding GmbH,
wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong Holdings Limited. Citigroup
Global Markets Asia Limited, which was interested in a long position of 6,000 Shares
as a beneficial owner, was wholly controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings Limited.
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AR A R HallgainfR A & 1718 5 B sk R
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FREFESE  REFAERMRELENA
Hallgain> & % -

BB ITEREREEREZE RS - R —=
F+=-A=+—H  Hallgainf B EH T2
BBITIRANAV35.40% ©

Jamplan&# K HEEFEZ SR - Jamplang
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JamplanZiBH 2 EHEM B AREEREBR
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TERE£EE 2 &2 % (a) Citigroup Holdings Inc.,
Citigroup Holdings Inc. 242 fl|Citibank N.A. + LA
ERFEEAFHN19,952 342 R AR A
125 + (b) Citigroup Global Market Holdings Inc. *
ffCitigroup Global Market Holdings Inc. 21422
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. °

Umbrella Asset Services Hong Kong Limited¥
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. 2 &3] » I LA
E kA A F 17 725,678,500/% A& {5 1 6,333[%
Bt o RIS RE REARER -

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.Citigroup Financial
Products Inc. 2 &% - WAEZEAAFHR
51,386,000/% % {7 o # A =B ©

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. 2 & #% #l
Citigroup Global Markets International LLC
Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance
AG ° Citigroup Global Markets LimitedsCitigroup
Global Markets Europe LimitedZ &4 » I A
B A A F 197 77,596,833% Bk 15 2 409,033
B o RS KRB MG B - Citigroup
Financial Products Inc. ~ Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC K Citigroup Global Markets
(International) Finance AG#% 5l|# & Citigroup
Global Markets Europe Limited 64.67% ~ 35.22%
0.1 %l o

Citigroup Financial Products Inc.z & 2 #lCitigroup
Global Markets Switzerland Holding GmbH -
Citigroup Global Markets (Interational) Finance AG
K. Citigroup Global Markets Switzerland Holding
GmbH% B4 Citigroup Global Markets Overseas
Finance Limited 51.86% &48.14%#9#2 §l4 +
Citigroup Global Markets Overseas Finance Limited
2 &4 Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings Limited = Citigroup Global Markets Asia
Limited52Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings LimitedZ &% » WAE =B ASH
76,0008 0 R KA °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2013,
save for the deviation that the non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to
paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation,
all the Directors (including the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each Director has confirmed that he has
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s largest customer was KCHL’s subsidiaries
other than the Company and its subsidiaries (the “KCHL Group”), and the
percentage of sales attributable to the KCHL Group was 12%. The Group’s
second largest customer was Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain
Group”), and the percentage of sales attributable to the Hallgain Group was
6%. The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
combined was less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. During the year,
the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
the five largest suppliers combined were 11% and 36%, respectively. The
percentage of purchase attributable to KCHL, one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers was 10%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continued)

At 31 December 2013, each of KCHL, a shareholder holding more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital and Hallgain, a controlling shareholder of
KCHL, had beneficial interests in one of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2013, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Supply Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, the Company and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “Supply Framework Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Group agreed to supply copper and laminates to the
Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013. Under
the Supply Framework Agreement, the amount of copper and
laminates to be supplied is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the products under the Supply Framework Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Hallgain Group with the
Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Supply Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Supply Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 26 April 2011.
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CON N ECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

26

Purchase Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, the Company and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “Purchase Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase materials for the
production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries from the
Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013. Under the
Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount to be purchased is
not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between the parties
from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) of the products under the
Purchase Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual
orders placed by the Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Purchase Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 26 April 2011.

Material Purchase Agreement

On 7 November 2011, the Company and KCHL entered into a
material purchase agreement (the “Material Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase chemicals including
methanol, formalin, phenol, acetone, phenol resin and caustic soda
from the KCHL Group from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014.
Under the Material Purchase Agreement, the amount of chemicals
to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and agreed
between the parties from time to time. The pricing under the Material
Purchase Agreement is determined in accordance with the then
prevailing market prices.

The transactions contemplated under the Material Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

(d)

Material Purchase Agreement (continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Material Purchase Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Material Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2011.

The Material Purchase Agreement has been superseded by the New
Materials Purchase Framework Agreement (as defined below) with
effect from 1 January 2014.

Material Supply and Service Agreement

On 7 November 2011, the Company and KCHL entered into a
material supply and service agreement (the “Material Supply and
Service Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply
laminate products and related upstream component materials
(including copper foil) and to provide drilling services to the KCHL
Group from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014. Under the
Material Supply and Service Agreement, the amount to be sold and
the drilling services to be provided by the Group are not fixed but
are to be determined and agreed between the parties from time to
time. The pricing under the Material Supply and Service Agreement is
determined in accordance with the then prevailing market prices.

The transactions contemplated under the Material Supply and Service
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Material Supply and Service Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the table below.
Details of the Material Supply and Service Agreement were disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2011.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)  Material Supply and Service Agreement (continued)
The Material Supply and Service Agreement has been superseded
by the New Supply and Service Framework Agreement (as defined

BAERS

(d MRMEERBREHRZE
PRI S IR 53 2 37 2000 T IR TS
ERGR(ATX)ERLE -2 meE

below) with effect from 1 January 2014. —A—B4E%-
Annual caps
FE LR
HK$’ 000
FAT
The Group sold laminates and related upstream 7N BB B M £ E &2
materials and provide drilling services to the R EREE L TEE
KCHL Group under the Material Supply and SHEE AR LB e
Service Agreement RIR M LIRS 3,000,000
The Group purchased chemicals from the KCHL A& EIRIEM LR B R
Group under the Material Purchase Agreement 758t TEBERE(L T EM 1,298,000
The Group sold laminates and copper to the NEBRIBHEEZL T ZR
Hallgain Group under the Supply Framework Hallgain&
Agreement S BN IR &I 1,878,000
The Group purchased drill bits and machineries A& EIRIEE BER R
from the Hallgain Group under the Purchase Hallgain 5 B £R i 8 1E [z 1 2%
Framework Agreement 350,000

The agreements summarised below were entered into by the Company on
or prior to 31 December 2013 and are in relation to transactions for the year
ending 31 December 2014 and subsequent years (and not for the year ended
31 December 2013):

(@  New Supply Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “New Supply Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply copper and laminates
to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
Under the New Supply Framework Agreement, the amount of copper
and laminates to be supplied is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the products under the New Supply Framework Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Hallgain Group with the
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

New Supply Framework Agreement (continued)

The transactions contemplated under the New Supply Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the New Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

New Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “New Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
materials for the production of laminates such as drill bits and
machineries from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016. Under the New Purchase Framework Agreement,
the amount of materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time. The
actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the prevailing
market price) of the products under the New Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the Group
with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the New Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the New Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.
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CON N ECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

30

New Materials Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and KCHL entered into a
materials purchase framework agreement (the “New Materials
Purchase Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase chemicals including methanol, formalin, phenol,
acetone, phenol resin and caustic soda from the KCHL Group from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Under the New Materials
Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount of chemicals to be
purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between
the parties from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and
price (with reference to the prevailing market price) of the chemicals
under the New Materials Purchase Framework Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Group with the KCHL
Group.

The transactions contemplated under the New Materials Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the New Materials Purchase Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

New Supply and Service Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and KCHL entered into a supply
and service framework agreement (the “New Supply and Service
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
supply laminates and related upstream component materials and to
provide drilling services to the KCHL Group from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016. Under the New Supply and Service Framework
Agreement, the amount of laminates and related upstream component
materials to be sold and the drilling services to be provided are not
fixed but are to be determined and agreed between the parties from
time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with reference
to the prevailing market price) of laminates and related upstream
component materials and the drilling services to be provided under the
New Supply and Service Framework Agreement will be subject to the
individual orders placed by the KCHL Group with the Group.

The transactions contemplated under the New Supply and Service
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the New Supply and Service Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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CON N ECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013 disclosed by the Group
on page 28 of the annual report in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.38. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange. The continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013:

(@ have received the approval of the Directors of the Company;

(b) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement governing such transactions;

(€ have not exceeded the relevant cap amount for the financial year
ended 31 December 2013 disclosed in previous announcements; and

(d) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company with reference to similar transactions with independent third
parties.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable requirements
relating to connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility
and the time devoted to the business of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme is set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wa
CHAIRMAN

21 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(BREIAWRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognises the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed company. It is in
the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to
operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2013, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific
terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, each Directors has confirmed that he has complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions adopted by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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A. DIRECTORS
The Board

34

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines which set forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular circumstances.
Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company Secretary as
delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed to the Board
members within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the meetings,
informing them of the background and giving explanation on matters
to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the opportunity
to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure
the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of the
Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he/she
or his/her associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in
the quorum of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes
of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the board meeting
and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board (continued)

During the year under review, the Board had held 4 meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:

i

% % (&)

EE2H)

2 BRI T

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
gz ERZEE® REZEE® FHZEEE
= - o ]
Number of Meeting 2EYH 4 3 1 1
Executive Directors HITEE
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REZE(ZE) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) 3Bl (EZ 4455 ) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Ping SREIF 4 - - -
Lam Ka Po MRE 4 - - -
Cheung Ka Ho FERK 4 - - -
Liu Min Ly 4 - - -
Zhou Pei Feng [t & 4 - - -
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Lo Ka Leong BRw 4 3 1 1
Independent non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Rk 4 3 1 1
Leung Tai Chiu REEiE 4 3 1 1
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter SRR 4 3 1 1
Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen i 9pul 4 3 1 1

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affair at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than 4 times in

the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

36

Division and responsibilities

The Board is headed by the Chairman whose role differs from that of
the Managing Director of the Company. The roles of the Chairman
and Managing Director are segregated and are not exercised by the

same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

o scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely

manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

° preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the

Managing Director;

° exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the

Directors; and

. assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and

the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the overall strategic

planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRS

A. DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Board currently comprises 12 members, four of whom are
independent non-executive Directors who are expressly identified in
all corporate communications that disclose the names of Directors.
At least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or related
financial management expertise) as required by the Listing Rules. The
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwok Ping

Lam Ka Po

Cheung Ka Ho

Liu Min

Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director
Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive Directors
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Leung Tai Chiu

Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping are brothers and are uncles of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent
non-executive Directors (except Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, who
was appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive
Director on 4 May 2011) was appointed for an initial term of two
years commencing in November 2006. The appointment of Mr. Lo
Ka Leong as a non-executive Director will continue after the initial
term unless terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by
either party to the other. The appointment of the independent non-
executive Directors will continue after the initial term unless otherwise
agreed between the parties. Currently, the non-executive Director
and the independent non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible
for re-election. The Board considers that although such arrangement
deviates from paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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o

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates and its upstream materials, administration
and management experience in the PRC factories, financial
and accounting skill, as well as in-house advice to comply with
international laws and regulations. The current Board size of twelve
Directors with a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature and scope
of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after appointment.
At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by the Board who
are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall
be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible
for re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision
on their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Director shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders
by announcement and shall include in such announcement, the
reasons given by the Director for his resignation.
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A.

DI R ECTO RS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

A briefing session was organised for the Directors for the year under
review to update the Directors on the recent market development with
respect to the Listing Rules.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. %%i )

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)
During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the

following trainings:

ESEEmW)
CIEAFERN  EFTH2EATEHEI

Attending or
participating

in the briefing
session/seminars/
programmes
relevant to

the business/
Directors’ duties

HESR S
BEEY EBRK

wENgE
Name of Directors EEHS BE wtE
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REIE(EE) v
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) R R (B FAGACHE) N
Cheung Kwok Ping REF v
Lam Ka Po MRE v
Cheung Ka Ho RE R v
Liu Min 28 Vv
Zhou Pei Feng AEiE vV
Non-executive Director: FHITES !
Lo Ka Leong BRT Vv
Independent non-executive Directors: BIYFBTES:
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRI V
Leung Tai Chiu REEER v
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter BiR Vv
Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen e Vv

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG
Code on Directors’ training.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. All the Directors are given separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.
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B.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Mok Yiu
Keung, Peter, to formulate policies and procedures for determining
the remuneration of Directors and senior management and other
remuneration related matters. The Remuneration Committee is set
up with written terms of reference which set out clearly its duties and
authorities delegated by the Board, including the following duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;

° recommend to the Board specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits
in kind, incentive payments, and share options, if any, for
each executive Director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is designated to
consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
taking into account factors such as effort, time spent and
responsibilities.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continved)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to him
by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for similar
position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the
year under review is set out on pages 111 to 113 in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements. Review and comparison in terms
of Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened one meeting to consider the performance, and the
remuneration policy and packages for all Directors and senior
management.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially affect or
may have material impact on the financial performance and operations
of the Company to the Audit Committee and the Board and respond
to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and
the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 50 to 51 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continuea)

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group’s assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities

of the Audit Committee include the followings:

review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

nominate persons as auditor;

review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, at
least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit services
to the Company, the Audit Committee will keep the nature and extent
of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
the Group were as follows:
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Amount (HK$)

£F (BT
Nature of services PRIEMHEE
Audit services ZERG 3,000,000
Non-audit services FERZ R
() Tax services 0} AR 139,000
(i) Other services (i) HAib 7% 324,000

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit
services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded that
in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditors as and when they think necessary
at the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continuea)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

o to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
o to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
° to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

° to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael, Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter, Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen and
Mr. Lo Ka Leong.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
including a review of the unaudited interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and the audited
annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013. During the year under review, the Audit Committee
had convened three meetings.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

o review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2013 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

. discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

o review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by different independent non-executive Director, to assist
the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference setting out
the principles, procedures and arrangements which are substantially
the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter,
and Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen. According to the written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

° be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval

of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise; and

° be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (ontinued)

During the year under review and up to the date of the report, the
Nomination Committee had convened one meeting during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire
by rotation pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and
Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wa, Mr. Lam Ka Po and Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, being executive
Directors, and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being an independent non-
executive Director, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All the above-
named Directors were nominated by the Nomination Committee to
stand for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. During the meeting of the Nomination Committee, it
had considered the policy for the nomination of Directors, and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select
and recommend candidates for directorship. It had also reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each committee are required to attend and answer questions
from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their questions,
comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications in a form chosen by each shareholder
of the Company. The notices are also published on the Company’s
website at www.kblaminates.com. Separate resolutions are required
at general meetings on each distinct issue. A shareholder is permitted
to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:

Address: 2nd Floor, Harbour View 1
No. 12 Science Park East Avenue
Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park
Shatin, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 26910445/26915245
Email: enquiry@Kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association.

An up to date version of the Articles of Association is available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Company’s Articles
of Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kblaminates.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 153, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit
of loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
RV E GRS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS
REEmEK
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE—Z—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
=== —E——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
bz FET FAT
Revenue e 7 12,798,302 12,483,227
Cost of sales SHEM A (10,806,997) (10,564,936)
Gross profit ESl 1,991,305 1,918,291
Other income, gains and losses Hag A~ Wz Mg 9 172,004 125,194
Distribution costs FaKiz DN (278,508) (276,179)
Administrative costs TTIRR AR (437,430) (419,619)
Share-based payments AR LR AT 7R 33 (12,916) (30,847)
Share of result of an associate FEAG—FHEE AR 2 F A 2,248
Gain on fair value changes of investment WEMENFTEZE 2 W
properties 1,840
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate R {EHE — B A E 2 UE 30,377
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 W&
investments 64,438
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HEBERRHIRE 2 ke
investments 23,728
Finance costs & AR 10 (124,783) (94,025)
Profit before taxation M T AT A 1,393,151 1,345,446
Income tax expense FRISTR X 11 (183,268) (179,505)
Profit for the year REEHF 12 1,209,883 1,165,941
Profit for the year attributable to: REE T EIEDEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIES YN 1,207,182 1,163,941
Non-controlling interests FEFERE R RS 2,701 2,000
1,209,883 1,165,941
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted GREF — ERREE 15 CLelocie s HK$0.388 T
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e fBm MEME RS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BiZE =T —=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2013
—E2—=

HK$’000

FTET

Profit for the year REERA

1,209,883

Other comprehensive income Hfb 2 mEK =
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & EH A EF B2 EH -
Exchange differences arising from translation AFTEEE2REBMEE L
to presentation currency T =58

400,782

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to st @R EE W ER 5 IEE

37,110

(11,369)

25,741

426,523

1,636,406

profit or loss: bi=Fnped ==
Investment revaluation reserve: WEBMFHE
Fair value changes of available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments NFEE
Reclassification adjustment relating to PHETHEERE
disposal of available-for-sale investments MIEL M S D AR
Translation reserve: V& 5 &
Share of change in reserve of an associate iR —REBE R 2 HER
Other comprehensive income for the year AEFEEHMEA R
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE KR
Total comprehensive income attributable to: SHENEBTEELNDEE -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEEYEDN
Non-controlling interests eI R

1,606,199
30,207

1,636,406

2012

HK$'000
THET

1,165,941

7,237

227,389

(64,438)

429

163,380

170,617

1,336,558

1,332,332
4,226

1,336,558
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RA MR

At 31 December 2013 R =T — =6+ _A=+—H

Notes
s
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties WEWE 16
Properties, plant and equipment YE -~ B K& E 17
Prepaid lease payments FEAERE 18
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 19
Non-current deposits ERBIET & 20
Other non-current assets Hib3Emen &= 21
Deferred tax assets RIETIBE E 22
Goodwill kS 23
Current assets mBEE
Inventories 7E8 24
Trade and other receivables and B 5 M H M FEUER 5k &
prepayments SRS 25
Bills receivables R 25
Properties held for development FERYHE 26
Other current assets Hibme)EE 21
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 18
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R R A Bl5kIE 27
Taxation recoverable BEeE
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 28
Current liabilities nBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMERIRR 29
Bills payables R 29
Deposits received from pre-sale of TEEWEMKETS
residential units
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ER R RWB A RRE 27
Taxation payable FEEHIIA
Bank borrowings — RITIEE -
amount due within one year —FRNEIEZ F0E 30

Net current assets

mEEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

BERERRBERE
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2013
—E2—=

HK$’000

FTET

1,283,553
5,346,161
460,569
1,904,009
199,290
734,889
4,083

238

9,932,792

1,289,434

4,295,860
728,826
2,991,581
11,291
274,782
7,063
2,427,697

12,026,534
1,624,928
239,131
220,450

40,214
324,585

1,593,338

4,042,646

7,983,888

17,916,680

2012

HK$'000
THET

913,829
5,492,448
499,267
1,063,506
79,867
4,111

238

8,053,266

1,259,151

4,638,708
1,250,298
575,374
712,531
11,841
437,397
7,063
2,328,204

11,220,567

1,488,561
109,518

32,447
302,000

1,310,796

3,243,322

7,977,245

16,030,511



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR e IR

At 31 December 2013 R —ZE—=4%+—-A=+—H

2013 2012
2= —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
bEES FET FABT

Non-current liabilities ERBBE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRIEAE 22 101,298 08,144

Bank borrowings — FITEE —

amount due after one year —F & EI8 2 F0E 30 3,790,846 3,041,681
3,892,144 3,139,825
14,024,536 12,890,686

Capital and reserves B A 2 G
Share capital [N 31 300,000 300,000
Reserves i 12,618,293 11,508,165
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA Rl#H A JE(G S 12,918,293 11,808,165
Non-controlling interests Ealivgi 1,106,243 1,082,521
Total equity BARLEE 14,024,536 12,890,686

BEeRN _E-NE=ZA-+—HDHERE
WETIBEEE2 R 153 B i I IERE - WA T
HIEBERKEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 153 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wa Cheung Kwok Keung

REE REE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARBZHE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z —

T—=F+_A=+—BLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Property  Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Translati { i options Special ~ Statutory  Goodwill  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
¥ REEMR B
BE RERRE  BRIER [k | RE% A FBRER  EREE
HKPO00  HiKS HKS HK$000

Balance at 1 January 2012 WoZ-—6-F-H7ER 300000 1,097,104 1515375 7,268 (115,744) 69,052 757,689 44,336 1633 7068278 10744986 1045666 11,790,652

Proft for the year RERER - - - - - - - - - 1163941 1,163,941 2000 1,165,941

Exchange differences arising from translation RifEZ2REXTmEL 2

to presentation currency E | - - 5,011 - - - - - - - 5011 2,026 7,231

Fair valus changes of avallable-for-sale TREEREZ A TELS

investments - - - - 227,389 - - - - - 227,389 - 227,389
Share of change in reserve of an associate B~ L AT BEED - - 429 - - - - - - - 429 - 429
Reclassification adjustment relating to RHETHEERER
disposal of avallable-for-sale investments  (EHEIEHHEEE - - - - (64,438) - - B - - 64,438) - (64,438)
Total comprehensive income for the year A& F2ENSEE - - 5,440 - 162,951 - - - - 1163941 1,332,332 4226 1336558
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ TERRMEREERRTFAAR
payments - - - - - 30,847 - - - - 30,847 - 30,847
Acauisttion of nterest in a subsidiary KE-EHBAR ER
(note 34) (Hf¥34) - - - - - - - - - - - 58,569 58,569
Divicends paid to non-controling interests 24 PR 2l 8 - - - - - - - - - - - (25,930) (25,930)
Final dividend paid for the year ended 31~ EHEZ-Z——4+-4
December 2011 S+-BIEEIRBRE - - - - - - - - - (150,000 (150,000) - (150,000
Interim dividend paid for the year ended 31 EREZE-F——F+-f
December 2012 S+-BIEEZTHRE - - - - - - - - - (150,000 (150,000) - (150,000
Transer to reserve ERTRE - - - - - - - 2,647 - 2,647) - - -
- - - - - 30,847 - 2,647 - (302,647) (269,153) 32,629 (236,524)
Balance at 31 December 2012 WZZ2-—F+-f=t-8
i 300000 1,097,104 1,520,815 7,268 47,207 99,899 757,689 46,983 1633 7920567 11,808,165 1082521 12,890,686

Balance at 1 January 2013 RZF-Z§-F-HZ&H% 300000 1,097,104 1,520,815 7,268 47,207 99,899 757,689 46,983 1633 7929567 11,808,165 1,082,621 12,890,686

Proft for the year RERER - - - - - - - - - 1207182 1,207,182 2701 1200883

Exchange differences arising from translation RifEZ2REXTES 2

to presentation currency EfzE - 373,276 - - - - - - - 373,276 27,506 400,782

Fair value changes of avalable-for-sale  IEHEREATEES

investments - - - - 37,110 - - - - - 37,110 - 37,110
Reclassification adjustment relating to RHETHIERED
disposal of available-for-sale investments B HEH 2 A% - - - - (11,369 - - - - - (11,369) - (11,369)
Total comprehensive income REERENRES
for the year - - 373,276 - 25741 - - - - 1207182 1,606,199 30207 1,636,406
Recognition of equity-settied share based BB EHLERNF AN
payments - - - - - 12,916 - - - - 12,916 - 12,916
Acquisition of addtional interests WE-ENBLR 2 BMER
in subsidiaries (note ¢) (Hte) - - - - - - - - 1013 - 1013 (3.985) (2.972)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests B P RER 2 8 - - - - - - - - - - - (2,500) (2,500)
Final dividend paid for the year ended 31 BREZ-E-—£+-f
December 2012 S+-BIEEIFERE - - - - - - - - - (360,000 (360,000) - (360,000
Interim dividend paid for the yearended 81 EHEZ=Z—=F+=F
December 2013 S+—BIFEZTHRE - - - - - - - - (150,000 (150,000) - (150,000
Transer to reserve ERTRERE - - - - - - - 18,653 - (18,653) - - -
- - - - - 12,916 - 18,653 1,013 (528,653) (496,071) (6,485) (502,556)
Balance at 31 December 2013 WZZ2-=F+-f=1-8
i 300000 1,007,104 1,894,091 7,268 72,948 112,815 757,689 65,636 2646 8608096 12918293 1,106,243 14,024,536

Notes: B e

(@) Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents (@) TADIKZEEFRBEIDEEES @ H5PHRP
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People’s E NRAANE ([ E) AT 9P B 2 R R i
Republic of China (the “PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and MERERARAERBRE B EANATH
funds shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production B ()R A R B sk () R L EIEE -
operations.

(b) Goodwill reserve represents the effect of changes in ownership in certain subsidiaries (b) AR BEEERLE R T ETHEAR
when there is no change in control. FiEE# 2 & -

(© During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired additional interests () REBE_FT—=—F+_A=+—HILFEN
in a non-wholly owned subsidiary from a non-controlling shareholder. As a result NEE AR R W EIE R EHT B AR 258
of the acquisition, the difference of HK$1,013,000 between the consideration SR o ZURIEE LMD R {E2,972,0008 7T
paid of HK$2,972,000 and the amount of non-controlling interests adjusted of SR 28 JE VR IR 4 25 4 903,985,000/ T2 =
HK$3,985,000 was directly recognised in equity. 1,013,000 T B B R = ER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeaReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZE—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERK
Profit before taxation R A& A 1,345,446
Adjustments for: BLATIEB fEH A -
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment %1% - R REE 2 T8 709,045
Release of prepaid lease payments A EEFTEE D 12,612
Interest expenses B 94,025
Impairment losses recognised on trade and TE S M EAMEERR
other receivables R EEE 11,566
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, I R - BB R
plant and equipment REEE 47,924
Gain on fair value changes of investment WEMENTELE
properties pd & (1,840)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEEREZ
investments Wz (64,438)
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity investments &4 E 58 E ~ iz (23,728)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BIEHE — M2 ARz ks (30,377)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payment HEBMHEERKIE 2 W -
Interest income FLEMKA (78,282)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REERRZBEEE
inventories -
Dividend income from available-for-sale A ERE 2 RERA
investments (28,480)
Share-based payments LARRD A 3R 30,847
Share of result of an associate JEME—fEE N B 2 A (2,248)
Operating cash flows before movements RNitEEE BB KL
in working capital Rens 2,022,072
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEEM R 136,994
Increase in trade and other receivables and B 5 N E At fE U B 71 K B A
prepayments FRIEIE N (826,201)
Decrease in bill receivables FEU R R 342,012
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from FEUR B Z I8 A RIRIE
fellow subsidiaries A (5 ) (55,580)
Increase in properties held for development FESRYEIE (325,694)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 25 & B FEBRZIL N R L) (283,891)
Increase (decrease) in bills payables FERZEEIEMCR ) (97,650)
Increase in deposits from pre-sale of TEEEEEMTISEM
residential units -
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FESTR R M A Bl R IBE N 1,386
Cash generated from operations REXBHRERS 913,448
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid) RO (BH)BBFER (496)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B B SR (167,885)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) paid B4 B At 38 AR ([ L3 {ER ) -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES /&% %M //85 % F8 745,067
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBRLRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Purchase of properties, plant and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties,
plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments made

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Interest received

Proceed from disposal of prepaid lease
payment

Dividend income received

Proceed from disposal of properties, plant and

equipment

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity
investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Dividends paid on ordinary shares
Interest paid

Consideration paid for acquisition of additional

interest in a subsidiary
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

REXK
BEAHLERE
BEWE - BFE &G
BEREMZE
WEME - BE R
BT 2R &
ENENEERR
HEAMHEERE
FRSROR
[RE NS
HEBRNEERMSHE

B SHA

HEWE - BB L&
FR1SFRIR

Ue B BT 8 2 B3R &0 H SRR

HERE = BIREMSHIA

REXBFARE
R

BMEERE

FIGIRITREE

BRIRITIEE

ST E B

BERHE

Yo g —FHIPH 8 2 I ER S ME ZR T
SRME

B IRIER S 2 IS

BMEFHHRE(ARE
T

RERBALSEEEA
#inORD) B

FOZRERRE
Z£E1EH

Exgapa
FRZRERRE

ZEEE - BRT
EHRERE
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34

(2,085,305)
(367,569)
(686,240)

(79,867)
(7,021)

2,309,695
89,754

39,918

22,792
(205,439)

296,213

(673,069)

2,473,375
(2,398,788)
(300,000)
(99,141)

(25,930)

(350,484)

(278,486)

2,602,674

4,016

2,328,204



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZE—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate parent company
is Jamplan (BVI) Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate holding company is
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“KCHL”), a company which
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(FRIC*) = INT 20

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 cycle

Disclosures — offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
transition guidance

Consolidated financial statements
Joint arrangements
Disclosure of interests in

other entities
Fair value measurement
Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

* |IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

—RER

RARRERERSEMK LI ER A
—RERECHBRAR  EHRORE
EHAERSMARAR (BT ER
£ AREZ BB AR AJamplan
(BVI) Ltd. - ZAFIRA—RKREBRLZE
S 2 BRAR  MARARZ &
mIER AT AEECIER(I2E(
T #ZARA—FKRHASESFMAK
SRR BRAR - HBRHRER
FTERLET - RARGMPHEREREE
EEME MR E2E3EI ARIE R
— BRI o

ARBRZEZBRNR  EXEHBA
A2 EEEBENMITE40

ZIS’EE"ZIKEQ
B (&8

ERATHEBET
SR ) IR 3
K #&lE Jiﬁﬁéﬁﬁ&¢'

R -

BAMKRRER ] BEMBREEN-F
TNFE_T——F
BHFELE
EERBRRENETR  BE- LR
ZIBE] EENERAR
BAVBRMENF10% FAUBER AR
2] BEMBEE  THRREREM
EAENFZBTR ERMESD BRI
BANRHER 3l
E125R 287
EERBRREREI0S GAMBER
BAMBRRERF115 /ﬂziz}iF
REMBRRENF12R BERNECEROES
BEGRRIREAE1E ATEAS
BAGIHERIE 105 EE=EH
(ZF——FEEF])
BREIEAIBTH BUMKHE
(ZF——F8E5])
BAGHERIF 28I REERRRAE LR
(ZF——FEEF]) ZRE
BRGIEASE 2B HEt2EUNEER
23R
EA(RRMBRREN  BREBEERRN
2EZEE) HRAR
- 2BH05%
: BFRE TS R IR R R L 8 @R

BISRRERRERES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=%FF® 59



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
financial statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12
“Disclosure of interests in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) “Separate financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011) “Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it
deals only with separate financial statements.

Except as described below, the adoption of the package of five
standards has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, and associates.
In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements (please
see note 40 for details).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

ERa B RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE —T—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items
for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period
(please see notes 6¢ and 16 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’ and the ‘income statement’ is renamed as the
‘statement of profit or loss’. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
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New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities!
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Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: employee EEGHENF19 TEEMAE
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Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 EBBSRRAER]  FAEASEBIRAEL]
and HKFRS 7 and transition disclosures? FORRBEBTE  BOFRAEHIE
FRERZERIZE 75 EME B RIBE
(&5T74%) M3 FEs
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and BEEGTENFE2 SREENSHA
financial liabilities' EEETAN) ERE AR
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for HBSETERE3 FeMEEMNTU
non-financial assets! SRUERTAN) B
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and HBSETEREI9 TETEMEER
continuation of hedge accounting' SRUERTAN) Eapal—rapEnfuai=y
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs EREHEER —T-TFEF-F
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1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 1 RZE—NFE—A—Baiz&HBRD
FEHARAER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 2 R-ZT—NFEL A —HEZEREN
FEHERAER -
8 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined 3 AIEER - AR A BN EE
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised. BB R RAERFIR 2 R FEMIBD
REETE ©
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited 4 RZE—NE+ A —Bz&FHBD
exceptions. FREBMAER - BRAERIIIMESR -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and
further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of the subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have significant impact on amounts reported for the Group’s
financial assets in respect of available-for-sale investments. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed. The Directors anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating unit) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generting unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is described below.
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3.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivables for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised upon the
provisions of the accommodation services. Revenue from food and
beverage sales and other ancillary services are recognised upon the
provision of goods and services.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Rental income and licence fee income are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease and licence agreement.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs, are included in
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties held for development (continued)

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
investment properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
properties, plant and equipment when there is a change of intention
to hold the properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Its previous carrying amount of the
properties becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties,
plant and equipment.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment (other than properties, plant and
equipment under construction) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as other non-current assets or other
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimate costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE@HEHEw
(continued)
Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see EEZRESE (EERIMNES
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill) MEEEE e NE))
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying N RE R  AEBEZHE
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any AR BEYEEE  URE25E6E0
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If MEBERZEEELHERMERIE - (ML
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is BAAMABEIS  BESEETKES
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if % DS T REEBMIEE(IE) o
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an TeethstsE —EBEMAE S - BIA
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the EEeHtEEEMBEAELABNY
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable AR ESEE - A SRS EM—E 5
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets EEMBERLT NEEETEHORE
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise ERIIBSELEA - &S emOR
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for FA A IR R IR— B DR EEM SR
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. S/ BSELES o
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and AT B4 %8 A N TAE R S e ik A 8% (& B
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash BEIRSE - SMEEREER - Gt
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount KB EENEBAENGERIFES
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of HIBE  ZAERNWMAE R TEHES
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of BREE Y TG ARG R EE SRS
future cash flows have not been adjusted. LR~ R EE BT A
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is MEIEEE(KBELEASA) Z A dkE
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount SEHEGHENEERE  QIZELE
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable (KBLELSEMN) 7 EEEANRER
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or AU E 4 %E - JFER BB 25 0 iR
loss. 2o
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount MEBEEBRERR  5HEE (B
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised SEAEMN) Y EEEARTEREN
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying (e ATk @4 %E - MY BEEET
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been EREEEEE (B LELEMN)T
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or N E SRR R EE B EE
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is F2EEE - BE Y REREASmER
recognised as income immediately. AU o
Leasing s
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the BRI R Y BAED A
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to K % O] SREE i TR FR AR - R4 T
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. MARERY - TEEMmANESES
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease and licence agreement.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as properties, plant and equipment.
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3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including other non-current assets, trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. (See accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment on financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Dividend on available-for-sale investments equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or it becomes probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instrument issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial liabilities
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in the share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects
both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 16 and 22)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
certain investment properties located in the PRC of carrying amount
of approximately HK$230,983,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$199,969,000) are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value of such investment
properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax
on the assumption that these investment properties will be recovered
through use.

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$269,210,000 and HK$783,360,000
at 31 December 2013 respectively (2012: located in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom of carrying amount of HK$27,520,000 and
HK$686,340,000) are not held under a business model whose
objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. Accordingly, no deferred tax is
recognised in respect of the fair value change in such investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of investment properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom,
assuming that the Group is considered as a non-resident in United
Kingdom.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY continued)

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Legal claim (note 37)

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. Management has evaluated
and assessed the claims made against the Group based on legal
advice received and information presently available and are of the
view that it is difficult to provide the estimates on the outcome of
the case. Accordingly, no provision and accrual are made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 17)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter than previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations
may have a material impact on the results of the Group. The Group
tests whether properties, plant and equipment have suffered any
impairment in accordance with its accounting policy whenever
there is any indication that the assets may have been impaired.
The recoverable amounts of properties, plant and equipment have
been determined based on discounted cash flow method of each
asset or a cash-generating unit. The Directors consider that the
recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount of the properties,
plant and equipment and therefore, no impairment was recognised
at 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amounts of properties, plant and equipment are approximately
HK$5,346,161,000 (2012: HK$5,492,448,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 17) (continued)

In addition, for the licenced properties, plant and equipment, the
recoverable amounts have been determined based on discounted
cash flow method. The Directors consider that the recoverable
amount exceeded the carrying amount of the licenced properties,
plant and equipment and therefore, no impairment was recognised
at 31 December 2013 and 2012. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying amounts of licenced properties, plant and equipment are
approximately HK$685,797,000 (2012: HK$799,580,000).

Recoverability of the licenced inventory (note 21)

As described in Note 21, the Licensee (as defined in note 17) is
required to return the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed
during the licence period to the Group at the end of the licence period,
on 31 August 2015, either by way of cash or identical inventory
with the same value as the licenced inventory used, consumed or
disposed. The recoverable amount of the licenced inventory used,
consumed or disposed during the licence period is secured by cash
and bill receivables of a related party of the Licencee (the “Securities”).

In determining the recoverable value of the Securities, the Group takes
into consideration the validity and existence of the Securities at each
month end and estimates the recoverable value of the Securities. In
this regard, the management of the Company is satisfied that the risk
is minimal and the recoverable value of the Securities is not less than
the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed at each month
end.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 25)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is approximately HK$3,491,467,000
(2012: HK$3,091,149,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$353,330,000 (2012: HK$176,919,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques
that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to Directors. Any changes in the price per square metre in reference
with recent transactions will affect the fair value of the investment
properties of the Group. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in note 16.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will assess the valuation of financial instruments based
on quoted bid prices of the previous trading day in the markets at
the end of each reporting period. As mentioned above, the fair value
of the Group’s bond securities listed in the Stock Exchange and the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading (“SGX”), the pricing vendor
will assess its fair value taking into account primarily the fair value
quoted by the brokers which is adjusted for the lack of marketability of
the bond securities at the end of the reporting period. Pricing vendor
will exercise their judgements based on their experience to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
valuation model. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the available-for-sales investments, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the Directors. Any changes in the marketability of
the listed bonds will affect the fair value of the investments. Notes 6¢
and 19 provides detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments.
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5.

90

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

EAEREE

REBEEEEERURRBBELED
HEEAGEFERESREAFIRESE
W EAKEETERERSELE -
AR BEREAEFEMAR -

B E DR BHRAEE  AREZ
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(BREBTERA - iR RREEN) -
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B EEHEEEANALZHER
MR - EFERA - ARERBBXN
B~ EITHR - BERG - BITHE
FEBORAER A FEERELRLE
o

TWMTH
() SWMIAEF

The Group
RE
2012
—E-—F
HK$’000
FET
Financial assets B EE
Loans and receivables (including cash and B REKER(BIERES R
cash equivalents) ReEEER)
— trade and other receivables —B 5 RkEMEBERK 3,197,796
- bills receivables — RN EE 1,250,298
— amounts due from fellow subsidiaries —EWE RH B R R FIE 437,397
— bank balances and cash —IR{TEHNIRE 2,328,204
7,213,695
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 1,063,506
Financial liabilities HEE
Amortised cost B SERR
— trade and other payables —Z 5 REMERERER 1,106,721
- bills payables o E 3 109,518
— amounts due to fellow subsidiaries — BRI R RMEB AR FIE 32,447
— bank borrowings —RITIEE 4,352,477
5,601,163
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 14% (2012: 21%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group’s entities making the sale,
whilst almost 22% (2012: 22%) of purchases are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group’s entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars, Japanese Yen and Hong
Kong dollars. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
toab% (2012: 5%) increase and decrease in functional
currency against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2012:
5%) represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade
and other receivables, available-for-sale debt investments,
held-to-maturity investments, bank balances, trade and
other payables, bills payable as well as bank borrowings. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year where functional currency of each Group entity
strengthen 5% (2012: 5%) against the relevant currency. For
a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening of functional currency of each
Group entity against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

6.

TR B

BHEEREEBERBER

policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) miERER(E)
Currency risk (continued) EiE b ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) FRED(E)
2012
T4
HK$’000
FHETT
United States dollars E (32,190)
Japanese Yen HIEl 870
Hong Kong dollars BT 76,643

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 30 for
details of these borrowings). In relation to these variable-rate
borrowings, the Group aims at keeping certain proportion of
its borrowings at fixed rates. The management continuously
monitors interest rate fluctuation and will consider further
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 30 for details of these
borrowings) and listed bond securities with fixed coupon
interest (see note 19 for details of these listed bond securities).
The management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider repayment of the fixed-rate bank borrowings when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related
to the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) and the interest rates offered by the People’s Bank
of China (“PBOC”) arising from the Group’s bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed-rate
short term bank deposits and listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest. The Directors consider the Group’s exposure
of the short-term bank deposits to interest rate risk is not
significant as interest-bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and fluctuation of savings interest rates on
bank balances is minimal.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2012:
50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis
points) decrease are used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 50 basis points (2012:
50 basis points) higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 would decrease by HK$23,308,000 (2012:
decrease by HK$18,865,000) as a result of the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
borrowings; and

o the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at 31
December 2013 would decrease by HK$63,560,000
(2012: HK$8,564,000) mainly as a result of the
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale listed
bond securities with fixed coupon interest.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

94

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 10 basis points (2012:
10 basis points) lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
would increase by HK$4,662,000 (2012: increase by
HK$3,773,000) as result of the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate borrowings; and

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at 31
December 2013 would increase by HK$27,317,176
(2012: HK$1,738,000) mainly as a result of the
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale listed
bond securities with fixed coupon interests.

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has a
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity
listed securities, which have not been impaired at the end
of the reporting period, had been 10% higher, the credit
side investment revaluation reserve at 31 December 2013
would increase by approximately HK$53,344,000 (2012:
HK$4,076,000) as a result of the change in fair value of these
available-for-sale investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

There would be an equal and opposite effect on investment
revaluation reserve if the prices of the respective available-for-
sale equity listed securities, which have not been impaired,
had been 10% lower.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration of equity
price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 23.9%
(2012: 29.6%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2012: one) equity security listed in Hong
Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are exposed
to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price of the equity
in the market.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the board of
Directors has delegated the management to be responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk in relation to bank deposits and bank balances
is considered minimal as such amounts are placed with
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers other than group
entities. However, the Group is exposed to the concentration
on geographic and industry segment in PRC and the laminate
industry. At 31 December 2013, approximately 93% (2012:
92%) of the Group’s trade and other receivables are arising
from the PRC.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are concentrated on
a few counterparties. However, the credit risk on amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries is limited because of the strong
financial background of the fellow subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration of credit
risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as 27.1%
(2012: 46.9%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2012: one) listed bond securities issued
by one (2012: one) listed issuer in Hong Kong. The Group’s
available-for-sale listed bond securities are exposed to credit
risk due to the default of repayment by the bond issuers.
However, the Directors considered that the credit risk on
these investments are limited as the listed bond securities
were secured by certain assets of the issuers and issued by
issuers in Hong Kong with good creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. At 31 December 2013, the Group has
available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$2,753,229,000 (2012: HK$7,260,943,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE —Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. @EEIE(%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) HERBREEEERBEX
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESEE(E)
Liquidiity and interest risk tables BB TR
Weighted Over Over Over
average  Ondemand 3 months 1year 2years Total
effective ~ orlessthan butnotmore butnotmore but notmore Over undiscounted ~ Carrying
interestrate  3months than 1year than2years than5 years 5years cash flows amount
il 3571 BERS ZERML  -EML WEML ERS
ERAE  ZEAR BTHE-F BTEEWF ETERRF BENL  RBAE HEE
% HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
TR Thn Tén TEn TR Thn Tén
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZEt=A=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3674 Bt &%
Trade and other payables B RAMERES - 1,190,824 1,190,824 1,190,824
Bils payables ERZE - 239,131 - - - 239,131 239,131
Amounts due to felow subsidiaries  ERRZHEATHE - 40,214 - - - 40,214 40,214
Bank borowings - vericblerate  $/7(EE 128 235 31121 1205896 2716872 1,209,284 562041 5384184
1,851,290 1,235,806 2,716,872 1,239,284 48,868  7,092210 6,854,353
Weighted Over Over Over
average Ondemand 3months 1year 2 years Total
efecive  orlessthan  butnotmore  butnotmore  butnotmore  undlscounted Carying
interest rate Imonths  than1year than2years than5years  cashflows amount
T BBRg ZERNE  -ENE BENE TR
BiRHE AR BNER-F BREARE ETHERE  RESE KERE
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FiEn TR FiEn TR Tin TR
At 31 December 2012 W-8--£+-8=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabiliies 3££74 B A%E
Trade and other payables BHRAMERES - 1,106,721 - - - 1106721 1,106,721
Bill payables ERZR - 100,518 - - - 109,518 109,518
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  ENRIZHEARZE - 3,447 - - - 32,447 30447
Bank borrowings - variablerate  HTEE %5 216 686,736 702405 1649038 1497943 4536122 4352477
1,935,422 702406 1649038 1497943 5784808 5,601,163
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(©)

—=F+tA=+—HILFE

6. &m

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

IE- (&)

ERTANQIVESE
REKEUHEERAVEFEZ
TEBEMBEE 2D FE
AEEIFDVHEENSHEH
BRREHRATERFE - TX
FREVE IS BRI (AT B TE R 55 B 7%
BEZAVHE(LCEEMAMGE
R RBmABIR) - ARARF
EfEBWABEZIBERER
AEMHNHEAEAANEDZA
FHERBER(E—2F=M)

Relationship of

Fair value as at Valuation Significant unobservable
31 December Fair value techniques unobservable inputs to
Financial assets 2013 hierarchy and key inputs inputs fair value
R-ZB-=%
+ZA=t+—-RH2 AFE fRERM K ERFA  FAUBRYEBE
BBEE AVE RERR TEPAYE HEYE NFEZER
HK$’000
TET
()  Listed equity securities 533,440 1 Quoted bid prices inactive  n/a n/a
classified as available- market TEA TNER
for-sale financial assets EREMIGREAE
in the consolidated
statement of financial
position
REEEHTBERARSEA
A HENBEEL
kR AES
(i) Listed bond securities 1,213,077 3 Reference to the fair value  The lack of The lower of the
classified as available- quoted in the over-the- marketability marketability,
for-sale financial assets counter market with the 2 fT 51 the lower of
in the consolidated adjustments for market the fair value.
statement of financial effective interest rate TS IE
position expected cash flow and NEEBE
K& BIRRED A the lack of marketability
AHENBEEY SLELGIZ S5 TIHHR
LmEHES AVE - ERTIEER
FIRBHREMRRZ
T ERE
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 during the RBEZZT—=Fk= —F
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. +=-—A=+— ElJJ:ﬁFW F—
AR ELEE = A o [N fm R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(©)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

€M IAw

(c) S@MIENATEFEWE

(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of E-HUBEEAFEHTEZ
financial assets YER
Listed bond
securities
IHESRES
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 271,635
Addition NE 1,239,668
Disposal k= (1,054,824)
Fair value gain in other comprehensive income Hih2Ea 2 AT EK 41,941
At 31 December 2012 R-E——H+_-_A=+—H 498,420
Addition NG 722,656
Disposal HeE -
Fair value loss in other comprehensive income HihemEmlas 2 A EER (7,999)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=F+-HA=+—H 1,213,077

Included in other comprehensive income is a loss of
HK$7,999,000 (2012: gain of HK$41,941,000) relating to
listed bond securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

RFEHEERERAEEZ L
T &% 75 % 5 187,999,000 7T
—T——F @ Igz541,941,000
BIL) BWEREREBEE=ZT
—=F+-_A=t—RHIFE
ZHEMEMBRETZRARE
ShHEEEE -
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7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the
Group from the sales of goods, provision of drilling services, income
from property investment and licence fee income (note 17) provided
to outside customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related
taxes. Analysis of revenue for the year is as follows:

3

3

EEEEAEERBHIINEFHESR
o RHEAR - RERMEREZ
WA R s g B WA BFE17) A
W e 258 - ORI - R E RAARH
EVIRRAFE - FREXBENOTHN
T

I

2012

—FT—_F

HK$’000

FHETT

Sales of glass epoxy laminates HERAFEHEBRINER 7,186,224
Sales of paper laminates SHE KB IRER 2,487,842
Sales of upstream materials SHE TRt 1,816,204
Others Hitb 919,421
Income from property investment LIES S =R AN 73,536
12,483,227

Sales of laminates include glass epoxy laminates and paper laminates
manufactured according to specifications required by customers.
Sales of upstream materials include sales of copper foil, epoxy
resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper. Others comprise drilling
service, which involves the drilling of holes into the laminates required
by customers and sales of specialty resin and other materials and
licence fee income. Income from property investment includes rental
income from leasing of investment properties, income from hotel
accommodation and income from food and beverage and other
ancillary services of the hotel operation.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into two main
operating divisions — (i) manufacturing and sale of laminates and (i)
properties. No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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REILOEILIRTS - HERBEME - &
R R EERERA - IER
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R ERE WA REEEBERME
P ARG HOUA ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements. The CODM
assess segment profit or loss using a measure of operating profit
whereby certain items are not included in arriving at the segment
results of the operating segments (share of result of an associate, gain
on deemed disposal of an associate, gain on disposal of available-
for-sale investments/held-to-maturity investments, share-based
payments, unallocated corporate income and expenses and finance
costs).

(@) Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by operating segments:

Year ended 31 December 2013

Laminates
BRER
HK$°000

FHET

Segment revenue 7 EfE R 12,669,972
Segment results D EBEELR 1,299,392
Gain on disposal of available-for- HERHHERE Z
sale investments Wz
Share-based payments AR AT 3R
Unallocated corporate income k5 B2 A& A
Unallocated corporate expenses k5t 2 A& H
Finance costs L& PR A
Profit before taxation BR 7% A3 A

DEEE @)

REEBUERBEREST - DHE
HMIREARERZRER - ZFEH
MAKEZHTES(ETBZERRSE)
T - ARBRURIBEE BB R
WAEREBFIENMEMZ A EHE
SEHANEBI SRR ER B B REAE
—H - TBRBERFEARERN 25
BRFHED B ZBNHEE - EhET
HEYARBEBEEERRED T2 H
EEN(EE—FHBERARZES R
TR E—RBE ARz W - HERH
HERE HEZIHRE 2K - A
BN - RO B2 RRIRARX
HARBERA)

(@) IMERBEREE
RIBEED Bz A REEEE N
RESTOT
BE-_F-=%+-A=t—H
L
Properties Consolidated

/S e
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET

128,330 12,798,302

95,284 1,394,676

11,369
(12,916)
200,753
(75,948)
(124,783)

1,393,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT |NFORMATION (continued)

(@) Segment revenue and results (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012

5

8. ZEEFR
() oHEEBREESE)

BE-ZE--F+=-A=+-—

BIEFE
Laminates Properties Consolidated
EINEIR SIES o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T FA&T THET
Segment revenue DERLEERE 12,409,691 73,536 12,483,227
Segment results DEBFELR 1,318,868 4,850 1,323,718
Share of result of an associate JER—REt S E2
S 2,248
Gain on deemed disposal of an BIERE —EBE AR
associate pdl e 30,377
Gain on disposal of available-for-  HERHHERE
sale investments W es 64,438
Gain on disposal of held-to- HESERIHRE Y
maturity investments Wz 23,728
Share-based payments AR D S AF 30 (30,847)
Unallocated corporate income KOBLZ ARMA 112,176
Unallocated corporate expenses RO Z ARILH (86,367)
Finance costs [ELEENBN (94,025)
Profit before taxation B A& 1,345,446
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE —Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinued) 8. ZHERH
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) SHBEEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BEAEELEHMEENREE

by operating segments: ST -

At 31 December 2013 R-ZEB—=%+=-HA=+—H

Laminates Properties Consolidated

BHER L/ ES oy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FET

Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 14,709,281 5,169,491 19,878,772
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 1,904,009
Unallocated corporate assets: RO ARIEE
— Deferred tax assets —EEHBEE 4,083
— Taxation recoverable — Al e R IE 7,063
— Bank balances and cash —RITREBRIAS 54,498
- Others —HAth 110,901
Consolidated total assets A BEMRE 21,959,326
Liabilities =1
Segment liabilities NEaE (1,673,614) (397,711) (2,071,325)
Unallocated corporate liabilities: Aoz ARAE:
- Bank borrowings —RITEE (5,384,184)
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE (101,298)
— Taxation payable — EHHIIE (324,585)
— Others —Hfth (53,398)
Consolidated total liabilities FaBEAE (7,934,790)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 H £ =%

—=F+tA=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) SHEEREEH)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-—Z-H+=-HA=+—H
Laminates Properties Consolidated
EBINEIR ES N
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHETL T
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 15,432,402 2,369,918 17,802,320
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 1,063,506
Unallocated corporate assets: APBZRREE
— Deferred tax assets —EERITEEE 411
— Taxation recoverable —AJUREIFIA 7,083
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBR LR 294,945
— Others —Hfh 101,888
Consolidated total assets A AEMAE 19,273,833
Liabilities =i
Segment liabilities HEaE (1,450,075) (108,455) (1,558,530)
Unallocated corporate liabilities: PN o A/NCIN=N
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (4,352,477)
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE (98,144)
— Taxation payable — JEBIARIA (302,000)
- Others —Hfth (71,996)
Consolidated total liabilities e BfRRE (6,383,147)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank
balances and cash and other assets used jointly by
operating segments; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and other liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE —Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION ontinued) 8. ZEER =
(c)  Other information (c) HtER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or A ED BRI D LEERTA
segment assets: 28
Year ended 31 December 2013 B8z—F—=F+=-A=+—H
FE
Unallocated
Laminates Properties amount  Consolidated
EIRER LY ROEEHE oE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FTHER THER TExT
Capital additions BRIER 498,165 2,624,286 3,122,451
Depreciation e 694,530 22,392 716,922
Release of prepaid lease BAREZUE
payments [0l 6,933 3,267 10,200
Gain on fair value changes of & & ¥ A T(E
investment properties 857 72,110 72,110
Loss on disposal of properties, HEDE « HEK
plant and equipment B P ] 3,527 3,527
Impairment loss on trade and & 5 K& H b UL
other receivable BRI RIEEE 176,411 176,411
Impairment loss on inventories FLFEHERZ
HEEE 1,788 - 1,788
Interest income FBUA 7,141 118,258 125,399
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——_+=-A=+—8H
IHFE
Unallocated
Laminates Properties amount Consolidated
EIRAER /ES AobiesE ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FAT FAT
Capital additions BARER 551,510 798,240 - 1,349,750
Depreciation e 694,920 14,125 - 709,045
Release of prepaid lease BNREZUE
payments b qEl 10,344 2,268 - 12,612
Gain on fair value changes of B &WEATE
investment properties 8o W 1,840 - - 1,840
Loss on disposal of properties, HEME - BE K
plant and equipment Rl B8 47,924 - - 47,924
Impairment loss on trade and & 5 & E i fEUL
other receivable R RERE 11,666 - - 11,566
Interest income AU A 7,540 - 70,742 78,282
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ'(%)
(c)  Other information (continued) (c) HaERM®S)
The Group principally operates in the PRC (other than Hong AEEEZEBRMRFRE(E
Kong) (country of domicile) with revenue and profits derived BREES)(NEBZFEH) -

mainly from its operations in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location of the customers:

BETERENYEERE D
75 -

RIRINER R P AR 30 [ 2R & 5
ZAEEERBEOWMT

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAT

The PRC (country of domicile) PRI (AREE 2 D) 11,852,070 11,482,874
Other foreign countries: Ho MR -

Other Asian countries H b TMBIR 837,288 870,581

Europe BOM 49,675 76,623

America ES 59,269 53,149

12,798,302 12,483,227

Revenue from one of the Group’s customers amounted
to HK$1,508,609,000 (2012: HK$1,618,568,000), which
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets,
other than deferred tax assets, other non-current assets (note
21), available-for-sale investments and non-current deposits
by location of assets is presented as follows:

REAEBEF—EZEFPHNE
¥ %488 51,508,609,0007% 7T
(ZZT——% :1,618,568,000/%
JL)  IhAREERF AL ERER
B10% o

BBEERIAEE - HMh3ER
BEKE21) AT HERE
NERBET RN REEER
HEEREEMBOW25IM
™

2013 2012

—E—=F g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
The PRC (country of domicile) AR (NS EL 2 FrfEtth) 5,891,860 6,032,897
Hong Kong B 280,251 40,351
United Kingdom HEH 783,360 686,340
Thailand EE 135,050 146,194
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9.

9.

10.

HlA ~ WEmREE

Other income, gains and losses include:

Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments

Interest income from available-for-sale
investments

Interest income from held-to-maturity
investments (Note)

Other interest income

Net exchange gain

Hip A - s MR e

AHEEREY
AR S A
AHEEREY
FSMA
RHAEEZHREZ
FSUA ()
HABF BUHA

2013 2012
—_E—= —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T
32,671 28,480
118,258 47,596

- 22,788

7,141 7,898
6,832 6,872

Note:

Included in interest income for the year ended 31 December 2012 is the

amortisation of discount of held-to-maturity investments of HK$1,052,000

(2013: nil).

FINANCE COSTS

10.

fizE: BEAEE—Z-——4+_-A=1+—8
IEFEFEFBBARNEEITRITEED
B3I E 51,052,000 0 (=2 — =4 :
&) °

Interest on bank borrowings
— wholly repayable within five years
— not wholly repayable within five years

RITEEZFE
—ARAERNEBERZER
—TMEREFRNEBEREZBEE

Less: Amounts capitalised in the

construction in progress

B ERTREMNEMEER

2012
—2-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
128,680 99,141
1,623 -
130,303 99,141
(5,520) (5,116)
124,783 94,025

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally

is 2.3% per annum (2012: 2.2% per annum).

FrIfEESBERNBTEIERN ERAETF
23%(ZZT——1F : §F2.2%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrisFip
2013 2012
=5 —EF—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
The amount comprises: HEeE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENEH
Charge for the year NEEZHELH -
Underprovision in previous years BEFERETR 496
496
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Bl EEFTIS T
Charge for the year REEZ BB 169,571 176,555
Overprovision in previous years W FE R (1,822) -
167,749 176,555
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction HAb RDAREE 2 18
Charge for the year RFEZBIER -
Deferred taxation ERERIA
Charge for the year (note 22) BREFE 2 BIES H (FiFE22) 3,182 2,454
183,268 179,505

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

B F S R BB RS Ty IR b et B
TAILA16.5% 2 B RETE o

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT (IDERBRE)RETMEDN =
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 ZENF—A—BHR - ERNP BN
onwards. B AT 2 TSR R25% °

BRI EARKMBEEMETE]

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate prevailing
in the relevant jurisdiction.

HAbRDAMEE 2 BRI B R AR
ZBRABETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE —T—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq) 11.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Fri8 BB X )

REZZRIARGABRRRTEATER
ZHERIAT

2012
HK$’000
FET
Profit before taxation BR A% A& ) 1,345,446
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate of  LAE #1551 & 25%
25% (2012: 25%) (note a) (ZZ2—=F : 25% )18 2
FIEE H (Ffsa) 336,362
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ BEFIIET =S AR HIREFH 2

purpose BT E 5,143
Tax effect of income not taxable MBS BARRBAZ

for tax purpose D (37,222)
(Overprovision) underprovision in previous years i@ £ & # & (58 ) T2 496
Tax effect of Tax Concession/Tax Holiday TIEER R RS &

(note b) (Ff5EDb) (13,968)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERRIERIB 2 RS E 11,437
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B L RIATER

recognised HiaEsE (1,974)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BRE SRR - REAME]

operating in other jurisdictions/areas other SEREE [ A KB A R

than the domestic income tax rate ZTRABE 2 (9,659)
Effect of tax exempted profit (note c) ReBBUan 2 (Kiske) (111,110)
Tax expense for the year REZE 2B HAS 179,505
Notes: MEE
@ The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) represents the (a) BTN E2DL%(ZF—ZF :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s operations are
substantially based.

(b) Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC are exempted from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for two years starting from the first profit-making year in which profits
exceed any carried forward tax losses followed by a 50% reduction in the
income tax rate in the following three years (“Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday
enjoyed by these subsidiaries has expired in 2012.

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries in the PRC obtained official endorsement as
a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax concession”).

() Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are
exempted from profits tax.

25%) A KB AR S EHHENTE
DEFGHE o

(o) REFEREBEREER  ARRET
BB AR S & EEAFECENER
BB AR 2 B EE) B mER
ER R EMEREN - BR=F
FRS B R ER250% ([T ]) - %%
MBARFAZERMERN -_T——F
JEp

RBGRMEHE  SWEMEETR
HERHRART A BEM=FM15%7
REE - ATHEMBAREER TR
REMEmEE(TRRES]) -

(© ARRIRRFIZ ETHBABMES
IR R IARIST
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12.

REE @A

2013 2012
—E—= —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after AEEREAE &G GEA)
charging (crediting): LATIEE :
Depreciation of properties, plant M - BB &

and equipment REITE 716,922 709,045

Release of prepaid lease payments AR ERIERER 10,200 12,612
727,122 721,657

Net exchange (gain) loss BE 5, (Weam ) 1R 558
—included in cost of sales —ETASHERAE (1,507) 2,499
- included in other income, gain and losses —st AR A - YiEs R EE (6,832) (6,872)
(8,339) (4,373)
Auditor’s remuneration ZER NS 3,000 3,000
Cost of inventories sold EEFEZKAE 10,635,529 10,355,228

Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HE R mE -

plant and equipment [R5 K a8 AR 2 5 1R 3,527 47,924
Share-based payments LARR 9 FE AT 3R 12,916 30,847
Impairment loss on inventories MIFERR 2 REEE 1,788 -
Total staff costs other than share-based B TR AN 4a%E

payments, including directors’ emoluments (AR FE AT FRERSN) -

(see note 13) BREEEMNE(EME13) 577,094 446,478
Rental income HBWA (68,415) (26,449)
Direct operating expenses in relation to BB B

investment properties Fi sz 6,433 626
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE —Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13. X THABKES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS [ e
(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments () EBSRTHEAIME
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: BffsEM 2B
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Fees we 1,056 1,056
Other emoluments: HibB< -
Salaries and other benefits e kHEMER 14,216 12,809
Contributions to retirement benefits RINEFET B
scheme 637 620
Performance related incentive payment TYERIRIEEIFNIA
(Note i) (P &) 58,820 58,820
Share-based payments LARD FE A 3R 6,976 19,743
81,705 93,048
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2012: EfgEFTZR(ZE—=
thirteen) Directors and the Chief Executive were as follows: F T =R EFERITBERZ
BT -
Year ended 31 December 2013
BE-E-ZETCAST-ALER
Chan Mok Ip
Cheung  Cheung  Cheung Lam  Cheung Lo Yue  Leung Yiu Shu
Kwok Kwok Kwok Ka Ka Zhou Ka  Kwong, Tai  Keung, Kwan,
Wa  Keung Ping Po Ho  LiuMin PeiFeng  Leong  Michael Chiu Peter  Stephen Total
REE  REE  RET  MXE B3R 28 BEE  BRR  REX  2BR  BER EhE ait
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000  HK$000
T  TEr TR TER  TEn  THn  TEr  TEr TR TER  TEm  TEn TEn
Fess s
Other emoluments: e
Salaries and other benefts 54 REAER
Contrbutions to retrement A
benefits scheme BE L
Performance related IfRE
incentive payment LB
Notei) (Wi 15700 12200
Sharebasedpayments  HRHFARZ 1615 148
Total emoluments et 0121 16268
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE =T —=F+ - A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13. B THHEZRES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS B ()

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (a) ESBRTBRAZME(®

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T-CETCAST-RILER
Chan Mok Ip
Cheng ~ Cheung  Cheung Llam  Cheung Chan Zhou ) Yue  leung Yiu Shu
Kwok Kok Kiwok Ka Ka Sau L Pei Ka  Kwong, Ta Keung, Kwan,
Wa  Keung Ping Po Ho Chi Min Feng  Leong  Micheel Chiy Peter  Stephen Total

REE GER  RET MFE FRx RA% BR BME Exn Ri: 2B EEw EER o
HKG000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00  HKS000 HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
TEr  TEn BT TEr TEr TAr TEn TEnr  TEr TEr  TEr T TEr TEn
(Notei)
(Fz)
Fees #s - - - - - - - - - 192 192 192 80 10%
Other emoluments: S -
Saresandotherbenefis E4RAMER 2440 2249 2249 1994 1185 - 812 815 1065 - - - - 1280
Contrbutions to retrement &)
benefts scheme BE e 122 106 112 100 5 - ] % 4 - - - - 620

Performance related IfRE
incentive payment BEE
(Note i) (W3t 15900 12400 12400 12,400 3,900 - 760 1,060 - - - - - 58820

Share based payments  HRHTE 346 357 3065 308 308 308 - - - - - - 19743
Total emoluments Heug 2318 1830 17846 175719 829 3085 1613 1914 1106 19 192 192 80 9048
Neither the chief executive nor any of Directors waived any BE-T—=FRk=-ZT—Z=ZF
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2013 and T A=+—HIEFE - #ET
2012. WA EERNEEMME -
Notes: MiaT -
0] Ms. Chan Sau Chi resigned as executive director of the Company i) REZNER-_T—ZF+
on 1 October 2012. A—BEIARAMITES -
(i) The performance related incentive payment is determined with (i) TERREBMRIEBIDLZEM
reference to the operating results, individual performance and BEFEZEEEE  BAK
comparable market statistics during both years. BRLETSEERERT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

— V Al =
13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. X - THABRES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS SAC)
(continued)
(b)  Chief Executive’s emoluments (b) THREARME
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung is also the Chief Executive of the REISR S ETMAARRE 21T
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those wE o FXFIEEEMEeE
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. HEFTHRRHENIS
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had BHE—_ZT—=fk-_T——F
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 December +ZA=+—HIE  #ET
2013 and 2012. B AR S E EIE IS -
(c) Employees’ emoluments ) EEME
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, all of the BE T =k -_ZT——F
five highest paid employees are Directors. +ZA=+—HLFEE =25
hEEEH2EEBHAES -
During both years, no emoluments were received or RREFERN EFHAEEH
receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five highest paid hEGEmFTe ATBED K
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group FEWEAMEe EARS|IHE
or as compensation for loss of office. TMEAREEIMBAEBE R
<2 RN A RBE 2 FME -
14. DIVIDENDS 14. KA
2012
—T—CfF
HK$’000
T
Dividends paid EIRENRE
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 Bz =—=F+_-_A=+—H
December 2013 of HK5 cents (for the IFFE 2R ER B TR TR
year ended 31 December 2012: HK5 SEM(BE_Z——F+_H
cents) per ordinary share =+—HIEFE : 5581) 150,000
Final dividend for the year ended 31 BE-_T——F+-A=1+—H
December 2012 of HK12 cents (for the IHFE 2 RN B =T @A
year ended 31 December 2011: HK5 128I(BE=F——F+=A
cents) per ordinary share =+—HIFE  55) 150,000
300,000
Dividend proposed EERE
Proposed final dividend for the year ended #HZE_-_ZE—=9%+_-_A=1+—H
31 December 2013 of HK12 cents (for IFFEEHARBRE G LB
the year ended 31 December 2012: 128I(BE=_FT——F+=A
HK12 cents) per ordinary share —T—HIEFE  12/800) 360,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z— =44

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE
14. DIVIDEN DS (continued)

The final dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share amounted to
HK$360,000,000 in total in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: final dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share
amounted to HK$360,000,000 in total in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012) has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14. BRE )

EEERERBBE_T-—=F1+—-A4
=+ —ALFERBREGRE M2
AL - 360,000,000 T (= ——
FHET——FF+ZA=+—HL
FEAARESTRLT BB - K
360,000,000/ 7T) * HEBFARRIRE
RIEERRBFRGHE - FEEER -

15. BRER

AR AR N SR EARFE T
B

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Profit for the year attributable to owners of RATIEFB ARG
the Company FER

1,207,182 1,163,941

Number of shares

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FTEBFIREKRZEF|Z
calculating basic earnings per share A AR B

BHEE
2012
—E——F
000
:F
3,000,000 3,000,000

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s options because the exercise price of
those options was higher than the average market price for shares for
both 2013 and 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE —T—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REWE

HK$’000
‘}%/ C

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F—H—H 87,650
Exchange adjustments HE B 1)
Additions = 686,240
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) L B BT 8 2 B i JE BN (P 5E34) 138,100
Increase in fair value NFEE 1,840
At 31 December 2012 N—_E——F+=-A=+—H 913,829
Exchange adjustments TE 5% 34,069
Additions NE 263,545
Increase in fair value NEE N 72,110
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+-_A=+—H 1,283,553

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2013 and 2012 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified valuers not connected to the Group. Messts.
Roma Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was determined based on direct comparison
method by reference to the market observable transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to reflect conditions and locations of subject
properties. There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in prior year.

The Group’s investment properties were classified as level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013. There were no transfers
within the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

REBRENER_Z—=ZFR_ZF
—CFE+T A=+ RZAFEIIRE
AEENEERE 2B A BRMEEME
FERFEARAT - RAERETRH
B2REEEY - BERERFEARAA
REBAEMBEEE - HENKREER
LEE2EZRUNEZAIBRTISZ 5
IWAEH SR B IA R BR B R4 5 2 R0 R Az
BRET - MBEFEMA 2 AERI

REBKRENENR_Z—=F1+_A1
=+ -HPBERE=RLAFERER
Al o BFRFERBR BN FARLE
B

TREVNZSHEMELNTFENET S
E(LEZATERGBERMRZ2E8) UK
BATEFEL28NNBEREEHAT
B0 B2 A AFEREELR(E—=
=#e)
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16.

—=F+tA=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

16. REY=

(43N
(Rg)

consolidated statement of  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REERGaMBIRLER QFE
BEIRENE 2RI A (e EWNGIE S SR
Industrial properties Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
in Hong Kong method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking metre used would
into account of location result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property  investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa.
from HK$36,371 to
HK$38,750 per square
metre.
REEH TIRYE FE=R BYRKRERZ ERATSEELR L BFRERKELA
BELEE BYHORER  Wathk  BEBUREMENLQT
8 K EABRERIFE = - BEFEXNELA K2
PIanERERED DY - WEMR Ao
% - SEIKNT
36,371 7L £38,750/8
I o
Commercial properties Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
in Hong Kong method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking metre used would
into account of location result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property  investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa.
from HK$121,352 to
HK$131,632 per square
metre.
REBNERME E=R (SR PNt vd ERATSEELR L BFRERKELA
BELIEE BWHRER Witk  BEBUREMENLQT
8 N EAbERIFE = B ERELA k2
PIanERERED Y - WEAR Ao
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

16. REWE @)

consolidated statement of  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBWGEE MG R ~F1E
A IRENE 2RI A HEEM R EELE BANAE BRRE
Commercial properties Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
in Shanghai method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking metre used would
into account of location result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property  investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa.
from RMB28,400 to
RMB28,500 per square
metre.
R EBEAmE E=H BYHKREEZ ERAMSEELEEZ Y KERKRE LA
BELEUR BPIARER  Watk  HEBIREVMENLDT
i E R HEAERIEZE - B EAELA k2
PIanERERED Y - WA Ao
BRE - FFHRNTTFA
R#528,400TE AR
28,5007t °
Commercial properties Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
in Shenzhen method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking metre used would
into account of location result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property  investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa.
from RMB14,500 to
RMB14,800 per square
metre.
NIl EES)EEZES E=R BYIRERZ ERAMSEELEEZ P RERKRE L
HELECR BEIARER  Tatk  HEBIREVMENRDT

ERHEMENEE
PILNEGRE 2R ~ VIR
BE  FFHFANTA
R#14 5002 AR
14,8007T °

BEFfERELT Rz
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

16. REWZE @)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

consolidated statement of  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBWGEE MG R ~F1E
A IRENE 2RI A HEEM R EELE BANAE BRRE
Commercial Shops Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
in Qingyuan method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking metre used would
into account of location result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property  investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa.
from RMB10,000 to
RMB10,260 per square
metre.
Ny EES LT FE=R BYRKRERZ ERATSEELRE BFHRERKELA
BELEE BYHRER  Watk  BEBUREMENLQT
8 K EAbERIFE %= BEBFERELA k2
DIanERERED Y - WEMR Ao
% GEITHKNFA
R¥10,000tZ AR
10,2607T °
Commercial properties Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase
in London method with price per using market direct in the price per square
square metre comparable and taking metre used would
into account of location result in a significant
and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road measurement of the
frontage, size of property  investment properties,
etc., which is ranged and vice versa.
from GBP7,007 to
GBP8,956 per square
metre.
INGESGTSIEE/ES FE= Y RKRERZ ERATSEELRE BFRERKELA
EEHEA SEIKER - WHR  BEBRANENAT
8 K EAbERIFE %= - B ERELA K2
PIanERERED Y - WEMR Ao
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior year.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises:

16.

BREME
Ry LIRE = BBEATEE -

AEERRIMESHE NG ELRIFL
BMRORE B FE kR BFNAR
FEEAE  EDBERIEREYD
¥ - RMEFMEZATER  MEZK
BREERE/BINAR - RNBEFE
PR (A {ER M E -

BETHROREERFEZ

Property interests situated in Hong Kong

under: e
Medium-term lease FREATE Y
Long lease REAMEA

Property interests situated outside Hong Kong 1% R34 EHELAINE B

under: R
Medium-term lease R ERTEAY
Long lease REAMEA

LA BBV SEREERIE -
2013 2012
2= —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T
39,410 27,520
229,800 -
269,210 27,520
168,783 166,169
845,560 720,140
1,014,343 886,309
1,283,553 913,829
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlZE =T —=F+ - A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BERRE

Properties,
plant and
Buildings Furniture, equipment
for  Leasehold Plant and Licenced  fixtures and Motor under
ownuse improvements  machinery assets  equipment vehicles  construction Total
GiEd RE  HHRE rEYE
AREF NEEE  EERES RREE ERE hE BERRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TEL B TERL B TERL T
(Note)
(Mt
COST BA
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-f-H 742,102 2,751 6,871,964 2,442,056 424,259 55,465 446614 10985411
Exchange adjustments EREE 62 32 1,619 (602) 29 17 918 1,975
Addtions HE - 17,844 98,069 - 17,939 7,153 403,484 544489
Acquired from acquistion of subsidiaries  WEBATMES
(note 34) (fizrad) 460,422 - 22,30 - 40,400 1400 - 514522
Disposals and write off HE R - - (167,072) - (1,981) (664) (4.491) (174208)
Reclassfications ENnE - - 93,592 - 6,086 - (99,678) -
At 31 December 2012 RZF-ZEFZR=1-A 1,192,586 20,627 6,920,372 2,441,654 486,732 63371 746847 11872,189
Exchange adjustments BT 29,3% i 203617 76,613 13,953 1,057 2,114 350,751
Addtions AE - - 310,250 - 36,846 2,99 123,067 473,161
Disposals and write off {HE Rl - - (32,965) - (18,423) (4,688) 452 56,528)
Reclassfications Exipx 21,719 - 430,755 - 8,521 182 (467,269 -
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZE+-A=+-A 1,249,711 20,698 7,832,029 2,518,267 527,63 62,920 428313 12,639,573
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At January 2012 RZE-—%-f-H 232,068 2,751 3,828,047 1,498,038 171,700 40,551 - 5,773,155
Bxchange adjustments EXER 53 7 745 127 % 3 - 1,083
Provided for the year TEERR 31816 2,017 485,747 143,909 1424 3,072 - 709,045
Eliminated on disposals and wite off ~ HEREH R - - (101,059 - (1,847) (587) - (10349
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=1-H 263,937 4,835 4,213 481 1,642,074 212,375 43039 - 6,379,741
Exchange adjustments EREE 9,155 68 158,280 53,691 7,331 907 - 229,438
Provided for the year TEERE 4,448 2,542 523,068 136,705 47,785 2,3% - 716,922
Eliminated on disposals and write off ~ H{EB R - - (12,399 - (16,157) (4,13) - (32,689)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZF+-A=1-H 217,540 7445 4,882,430 1,832470 251,320 42207 - 7293412
CARRYING VALUE A
At 31 December 2013 RZF-ZF+ZF=1-A 972,171 13,253 2,949,599 685,797 276,315 20,713 428313 5,346,161
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZE+ZA=1-R 928,649 15,792 2,706,891 799,580 214,357 20332 746,847 5,492,448
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  17.

(continued)

All the Group’s buildings for own use are situated in the PRC on land
held under medium-term leases.

The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other than those
under construction) are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings for own use* Over the remaining unexpired
terms of the leases ranging
from twenty to fifty years

Leasehold improvements 10-20%
Plant and machinery* 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-33"/5%
Motor vehicles* 20%

included those grouped under licenced assets

Note:

Licenced assets comprised of the following:

M - BMERRE @

AEE 2 A RERFHUR AT EELY
FrAMRE L

b BERREEREB (BERR
BIMNRATHEE L RIABREET R
wE

SRS LR AFGHRARTH
WEHE-T+ER T
F

XY RE 10-20%

ME R 10-20%

L EER  10-33'5%

B
RE 20%
. BESREEREREENZSIER
BT -

REEREEBIEATRIEA

Buildings Plant and
for own use machinery Motor vehicles Total
BREF 5 K e 2R A B
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T FHT FHT FAET
COSsT 2%
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——%—HF—H 360,433 2,072,245 9,578 2,442,256
Exchange adjustments T i E (89) (511) ©) (602)
At 31 December 2012 RN-Z——F+-_A=+—8H 360,344 2,071,734 9,576 2,441,654
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A2 11,307 65,006 300 76,613
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F+=-A=+—H 371,651 2,136,740 9,876 2,518,267
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERRE
At 1 January 2012 H-ZT——%—HF—H 125,621 1,363,150 9,267 1,498,038
Exchange adjustments P& i E 6) 135 ©) 127
Provided for the year NEERE 7,247 136,454 208 143,909
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_fF=+—H 132,862 1,499,739 9,473 1,642,074
Exchange adjustments fEH AR 4,285 49,106 300 53,691
Provided for the year REEHEE 7,331 129,271 103 136,705
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=-A=+—H 144,478 1,678,116 9,876 1,832,470
CARRYING VALUE AREIE
At 31 December 2013 W_E—=F+-"A=+—H 227,173 458,624 - 685,797
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H 227,482 571,995 103 799,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

On 3 August 2011, a subsidiary of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited (“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed subsidiary of
the Group), entered into a licence agreement with Harvest Resource
Management Limited (the “Licencee”), a third party, to licence KBCF’s
copper foil manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou
to the Licencee for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August
2013. On 30 August 2013, the Licensor entered into a letter of
extension and amendments with Licencee and extended the licence
period for a further 2 years to 31 August 2015. The details of the
licence arrangement which remained unchanged, are as follows:

(i) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings
in Fogang and Lianzhou;

(ii) to use, consume and dispose of the inventory which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(iii) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in
Fogang and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 21 were licenced for licence income
of HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of
each and every calendar month, as a short-term measure by KBCF
to generate income from the manufacturing facilities, pending the
resolution of the interested party transactions issue, relating to the
manufacturing and trading of copper foil, with the non-controlling
shareholder of KBCF (note 37b) and the approval of the interested
party transactions mandate by the shareholders and/or when KBCF
clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper foil.
Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.

The Group conducted a review of the recoverable amount of its
licenced properties, plant and equipment based on valuation carried
out by independent professional valuer, Messrs. Roma Appraisals
Limited. The valuation is determined based on the value in use
calculated using the income approach. The discount rate used in
measuring value in use was 7% (2012: 7%). Based on the review, no
impairment loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

=%,
18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FANHERE
All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for leasehold NEE S IHIBMNIEERIEY BEEEIN
interest in medium-term leasehold land outside Hong Kong. R HEAFE 4+ PR E MRS 2 TR FRIE o
2013 2012
—E2—=fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREDTAT :
Current asset MENEE 11,201 11,841
Non-current asset IERBEE 460,569 499,267

471,860 511,108

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. A[fHEKRE

2013 2012
—=2—= —E—CfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Available-for-sale investments comprise: A HERERE
Listed investments, at fair value: EWERERAFEYIE)
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB T 2 IR 533,440 407,594
Listed bond securities, at fair value: EWEHFESGRATFENE) -
— listed on the Stock Exchange and issued — BT TR ARES T
by listed issuers in Hong Kong with fixed BITAET BEER
coupon interests 8.625% and 13.875% 8.625[E ) 13.875/E 2 [ETE
per annum and maturity dates on 5 F5 - WRZZT=FF=A
February 2020 and 23 November 2017 ARRR=ZE—tF+—A
—+=H3E 593,181 498,420
— listed on the SGX and issued by listed — AR FT LT AE S ETEE
issuers in Hong Kong with fixed coupon TANET ABFEENT
interests ranging from 6.625% to 10.25% 6.625[E % 10.25/F 7 ElE
per annum and maturity dates from 16 28 HEHEAZZ—N\F
January 2018 to 29 January 2023 —ATREEZZ-=F
—A=+hH 619,896 -
Unlisted equity investments, at cost: JE FTHRE AN E (3 AFIE) -
- private equity investment in Hong Kong —REBZLERAIGE
(Note) (M3E) 157,492 157,492

1,904,009 1,063,506
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, all listed available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond
securities are determined by reference to the valuation provided by
the counterparty financial institutions based on their own valuation
techniques because of lack of an active market. The unlisted equity
investments are stated at cost less impairment as their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

20.

Note:

The amount represents the 19.67% (2012: 19.67%) interest in a private
entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The investee together
with other investment funds currently holds a number of properties in a
building situated in Hong Kong which is intended for redevelopment (the
“Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the Redevelopment
Project is 9.80% (2012: 9.80%) and the amount committed by the Group
amounts to US$21,000,000 (approximately HK$163,800,000) and for the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has contributed approximately
HK$6,150,000 (2013: nil). At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the investment is measured at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale debt investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

19. ITHEEREH)

RREBERER - frEAHEE L
TMIREH RN TFESR - BRERZIERE
mE - FMEFESFAFENLSER
S CHEESREGERMRA 2
BT - ARFFELMIRAREN R FE
TEER SERTE - BURK AR IBES]
E.E °
e : ZeHEEN HMREBELEE M
ML ZAEEE21067% (=T —=
F19.67%) i - ZALEEBRE
BREMEBRRER - 2REURK
HMREESHEES —RUNES
CAREZEWMEEN  ZAERTE
E(TEEANED - AEE2THERE
FTE129.80% (=T —=4 : 9.80%) *
# & & % /5 21,000,000 % 7T (4
163,800,000 7T) « B E =T — =4
+ZA=+—RILFE  AEEHE
#76,150,0008 (=T —=4F : &) °
RZE—=F+-A=+—HBE=Z%
——F+=ZA=+—H ARQAFE
ZEBEEEEREAN  REEFERA
REET S EEQATE  BHRRER
AR ERTE -

AHHEEBRERE TN EEER
MR 2 TIRE BB UINETHE Z 508

2012
—E——fF
HK$'000
T
United States dollars En 655,910
Hong Kong dollars BT 407,594
NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 20. EREFTE
2012
T4
HK$’000
FHETT
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, WHEMIE - BB RSB TE] 2
plant and equipment 79,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ —ZT—=

21.

B RS R AR

FH-_A=t—HLFE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This represents inventory licenced to the Licencee (see note 17) for
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013, which was
extended for a further 2 years to 31 August 2015 during the year.
Under the licencing agreement, the Licencee may use, consume and
dispose of the licenced inventories which include consumables and
stocks in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and
return the quantities of the licenced inventories used, consumed or
disposed during the licence period to the Group at the end of the
licence period.

The licenced inventory has been reclassified from other current assets
to other non-current assets as the licence period has been extended
for a further 2 years from 31 August 2013 to 31 August 2015.

The licensed inventory used, consumed or disposed during the
licence period is secured by cash and bills receivable of a related
party of the Licensee, with a total receivable value of not less than the
value of the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed as at the
end of the reporting period.

21.

E{w#blbibﬁé/
REEE

IR —F——FNA—BE_T—=
FNAZT—AREEEEA(RKE
17)EANFE - HRFRNEREIN
FEFT-AFN\A=T—H - REX
RER G - EIREARER AR
HERECRETE  EheEsia
EESFE - A - REEEERBER
- ERBARAASEEE RRER
RECAMEEER  RRARHENER
BERTEHE -

HREEEANER-_Z—=F/\A
=T —HAEINERRMEEZE_ZT—RFN
RA=+—0 RgEATEHEMRE
BEESFHEAEMIERBEE -

RERERBEER RARHEZE
BERGTFEHEREA—RBEEALL
RE REWEEEER - Ao
TORBEHEEREAEER ~ FEH
B RREERTFRZEE -
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iR ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE
22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, ELEFIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised TRAARRE HE RIA Efzﬁiﬁﬁﬁmg
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting f;g%g BEEBRAREE)UARE
periods:
Fair value
change of
investment Revaluation
properties of properties Others Total
BREWMEZ
AT EEE YIS Hith a5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FHTT
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—HF—H (3,366) - 6,565 3,199
Acquired from acquisition of U B BT B A B &S
subsidiaries (Note 34) (MI7%34) - (94,778) - (94,778)
Charge to profit or loss REBmHER - - (2,454) (2,454)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——%F
—A=+—H (3,366) (94,778) 4,111 (94,033)
Charge to profit or loss A1z kR (6,211) 3,057 (28) (3,182)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=4F
+=-A=+—~H 9,577) 91,721) 4,083 (97,215)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AT 51 R 1S iR 2 BT IR
reporting purposes: BRI -
2012
T——4F
HK$’000
FHETT
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 4111
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE (98,144)
(94,033)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBE MR ERE B - RSB
of HK$193,675,000 (2012: HK$139,819,000) available for offset 1840 oK SR Al 2 K %ﬁ}ffﬂ I B
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due 7 193’675’090’? 7t ( - = = E\ :
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses can be 139,819,00078 7C ) - &3 A A AUt
1© nprecdiciabily P ' AR - B AT (R RE A
carried forward indefinitely. B o 2 ufRIE S 18 A IR Hi 45 8E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —E—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 22. ﬁﬁ*ﬁlﬁ(f@
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed PEMCEMSEEEE  BZZEZN\F
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC —A—HE > PEECAFBEOHER
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has A BLET R EUE A M Bk 2 I8 B U TE 0
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in oo RARMIAAFBEBNE AR R4
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits F 2z Ba R 2515 3,525,920,0007%8 7T (=
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$3,525,920,000 (2012: T — 4 :2,784,805,000/870) * A&
HK$2,784,805,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of B ARAMZERER G A BRRIEL
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the B - R A R N B [ e don | B [ B By 2=
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. BoRE BABBREESEAETZR
ARG HRBEE -
23. GOODWILL 23. EE&
HK$'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and R—E——F—HF—H"
31 December 2013 T CHF+-A=t—HBRK
—E—=F+-A=+—H 238
24. INVENTORIES 24. FE
2012
HK$'000
T
Raw materials [FRH 697,680
Work in progress TR 259,307
Finished goods RN Gh 302,164
1,259,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

25.

2012

—E——4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHIT

Trade receivables 2 Z MR 3,491,467 3,091,149

Advance to suppliers TEfH FE R 2 5RIR 237,306 484,114
Deposits for acquisition of land use right for MERIFELEMERE L HE R

development of properties held for sale (Note) ¥z~ 2 5T4 (FMTET) - 558,228

Interest income receivables FEUCR B U A 30,673 6,854

Prepaid expenses and deposits A A kiES 190,318 145,038

Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable AREISER ([HSET ) 235,710 253,532

LAT on pre-sale properties THEWHEZ LI IGER 1,883 -

Other receivables HAbEUERTR 108,503 99,793

PRLLE 4,638,708

Bills receivables EkEE 728,826 1,250,298

5,024,686 5,889,006

Note: ~ The amount represents deposits paid for acquisition of land use right in the
PRC. The acquisition has been completed in 2013 and construction works
has been commenced in 2013.

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days (2012: 120 days),
depending on the products sold to its trade customers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition date:

MieE . HESBARBLAPEZ + iR
Fsfzele  ZWBER_Z—=
ERR - BER_T—ZFRHBER
Tig-

REEGKRTESGEFPZREENERA
1208 (=ZF— =4 : 1208) ' 18T F7il
EEMME - HNBEHEERER - &
SFREWERZ FRENREZEH(OA
EBREERBE) ST ¢

2013 2012
—E-=F -z

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT T8I

0 -90 days 0£90H
91-180 days 91£180H
Over 180 days 1808 M +

2,411,556 2,004,334
1,021,241 1,030,254
58,670 56,561

3,491,467 3,091,149

Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2012: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE —T—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an internal credit
grading system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
the Directors has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any customers.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
84% (2012: 82%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under the credit
grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$569,419,000 (2012:
HK$563,520,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the
Group considers that these debtors are financially stable and the
management has taken action to recover the outstanding balances.
The Directors are confident that these amounts are still recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 141 days (2012: 145 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are as
follows:

25.

EEMERFEPA - AEBRIHER
AR bEeEBERPCEREER
EFerAnEEEEaREATNRE,E
EEERBREEMNZ BEFZRE
NN BEERE -84% (=T —=—F
82% ) HEE AR B 2 B 5 e W BR 5UE
AEEFMKAZERARGE 2 xSE
Bito o

REEE FEWR RS EERE
o AR E/5569,419,00058 T ( =&
— 4 : 563,520,000/ 7T) + RIREH
MEREARLEE - AEBEWERZ
LHEELREBBEE  REARSE
ERE ZEEBAMRER BEER
BERBRE REREHRNITE - EE
iz ZSRENARAYFUKE - AEH
RZERBVERFEMERR - %5
RN FHREA141B(ZE—=
1 145H) -

BEREBRRE B S RKERR R
T

2012
—E—_4F
HK$'000
TBT

Overdue: wHEy
0-30 days 0Z30H 109,554
31 -60 days 31£60H 255,235
61— 90 days 61£290H 142,170
over 91 days iBi#®91H 56,561
563,520

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are overdue over
240 days because historical experience is such that these receivables
are generally not recoverable. Allowance on trade receivables
aged between 120 and 240 days are made based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default experience and
objective evidences of impairment determined by the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate.

BASRFREE2408 A £ 2 EIREE
R R E - AR B RZ SRR
R EEEL S o BRI T120%240
B2 E SRR 2B - THiRESE
BERRCHRREELNRGERR
Y EbET AR B RERERZESE
STEMNEHREZESHMET TR
Bl &EEMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BlE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25,
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

continued)

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the end of the reporting period. The
Directors considered that the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk of trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

EEEE 5 EEIRZ TR m e
Qﬁimﬁﬁfgiiﬁiﬁﬁmi
ER AREERESHRUERER
RZEMEE - EERR $%@iﬁ
mf%¢2£%&ﬁ@ﬁ%% XIEER
REBZERZ T REE D # -

The following is a movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: T ABREEEEF
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FER A 176,919 178,928
Written off as uncollectible s AU Bl 2 ZoE - (18,575)
Impairment losses recognised on trade B PR ER 2 R EEE
receivables 176,411 11,566
Balance at end of the year FRER 353,330 176,919
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired REEEBIEER 2 REZE S EWEE

trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$353,330,000
(2012: HK$176,919,000) which have either been placed under
liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables and bills receivables are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

3R #8545 353,330,000 5%7_5(:;?

— 4% : 176,919,000/ 7T) -
BEERBEBAVERNHEET 25

u/<—r IE

KIR © AR

SE S AR B A RIS o

B 5 REMEBRERREREEBET
FIASEEERAE BB UINEE

a2 5

2013 2012
—B—=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET

United States dollars ETT
Hong Kong dollars T

458,897
715,576
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE —T—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

26. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT  26. 5% REY%

Movements of properties held for development are as follows: FRREREZEHNOT ¢

HK$’'000

FHTT
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—HF—H 248,486
Exchange adjustments PE 3 A% 983
Additions NE 325,905
At 31 December 2012 R-—ZE——F+=-A=+—8H 575,374
Exchange adjustments TE 5% 55,466
Additions NE 2,360,741
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+_-_A=+—H 2,991,581
Properties held for development are situated in the PRC with medium- B R YR AT BT 435 A B
term leases and are stated at cost at 31 December 2013 and 2012. i TR ZE—=FR_T——F
+=ZA=1+—BUKRATIER -

As of 31 December 2013, all the properties are still under RZE—=F+-A=+—8 AW
development. ZENFERE -
Properties held for development which are expected to be recovered TERT AR BRI AE SR AR ST 1218 A ;R U [El
after next twelve months from the end of the reporting period are JIEBREMESEAERBEE  RARA
classified as current assets as it is expected to be realised in the ZEYEFRBNNAEBR T EEERE
Group’s normal operating cycle. Included in the amount are properties B ZE BB EHEZFEREY
held for development for sale of approximately HK$2,991,581,000 3492,991,581,0008 L (=& — =4 :
(2012: HK$575,374,000) that are expected to be realised after one 575,374,000 7T ) + TEEHRATRE AR 4
year from the end of the reporting period. RBEF—FRER -
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27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW 27,
SUBSIDIARIES

BUW (N ERERF

IE

2013 2012
—B—-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries under — RBIVEETE T EURE XHTB
current assets NAEIFRIA
— trade nature —E54E

274,782 437,397

The Group allows credit period normally up to 120 days for sales to
its fellow subsidiaries. The amounts due are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting period.

AEEFHELTHRREWBRAR ZE
EH—RBEREA1208 - S EIZE
AR B RERE - HIREY ARE M
HEREBRMN0EZA -

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TFHIT

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries under ENEEE TR R R B
current liabilities NGIE @2
— trade nature, neither past due nor impaired —BS54E - EaiisimE

32,447

The Group’s non-interest bearing amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
have repayment terms of less than 30 days. The amounts due are
non-interest bearing, unsecured and aged within 90 days at the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE —T—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group. At 31
December 2013, the Group’s bank balances carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.01% to 1.35%
(2012: 0.01% to 1.31%) per annum.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had bank balances and cash that
were not freely convertible or were subject to exchange controls
in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$1,065.2 million (2012:
HK$1,038.5 million).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

RITRBREAE

RITHEBRRASPERNEEFE 2R
E-RNZT—=FF+-A=+t—80"
REBRITERIRBITTHEFEN T
0.01EZE1.35E (=T ——%F : 0.01EE
1.31E)&TE

RZZE—=%F+=-A=+—8" 'K
SETAEHARIBRKASTTBEINE
ERIMMRZBRITEHRIR SN A
1,065,200,000 B 7t ( = F — Z F -
1,038,500,000 7T) ©

RITEHR IS BETIIAREEEMN
2L E AN EMEEHEZ AR

2012

HK$’000

FET

United States dollars E 337,358
Hong Kong dollars BT 756,854
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 29. ES R HENERR
BILLS PAYABLES BNRE
2013 2012
—B—-=F —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B S EIRR 891,922 822,925
Accrued expenses TEIREH 173,892 178,609
Payables for acquisition of properties, plant BEYE BENLEEZEMER
and equipment 49,300 47,542
Receipts in advance SELLEN 220,272 144,176
Other tax payables H e A1 IE 109,951 132,866
VAT payables AR T 103,881 104,798
Other payables EAFETERR 75,710 57,645
1,624,928 1,488,561
Bills payables ENRE 239,131 109,518
1,864,059 1,598,079
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the B S REMNERFIBEEE QBN RE N
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: ERE R ZERERSTIT

2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHIT

0-90 days 0%90H 766,410 629,534
91-180 days 91%E180H 78,010 156,957

Over 180 days 180H A = 47,502 36,434
891,922 822,925

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days (2012: 90 BEERMTHEERAVA(ZE

days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to —ZF :90R) - AEEBEEMI B

ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. B R E IR R IR A BN FIEREE
HABR MIE1E o

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2012: 90 days) NEBFENER 2 RRD /RS AR

at the end of the reporting period. REABMNWHAZA(ZE—=F : 90
H) o
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30.

TE-=F+-RA=+—HIEFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND  29.
BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

ESRHMEMSRIR
J?”EH?TEE(@)

B REMENERRENRERIET
FIASEEE R 2L BB UINE !
FHEZFREE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT FHETT

United States dollars ES 63,645 164,401
Hong Kong dollars BT 120,786 16,618
Japanese Yen =] 32,839 20,077
4= /&
BANK BORROWINGS 30. RITHEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Unsecured and guaranteed: AR R B HER
Bank loans RITER 5,384,184 4,352,477
Carrying amount repayable: BRI EABEE 2 REE :
Within one year —FR 1,593,338 1,310,796
More than one year, but not more than —FLL HETNEBBME
two years 2,593,338 1,683,338
More than two years but not more than FIFE LA EBT R =F
three years 1,135,008 1,083,338
More than three years but not more than ZFLHETEBRF
five years 20,000 375,005
More than five years FAFLE 42,500 -
3,790,846 3,041,681
Total &5 5,384,184 4,352,477

Bank borrowings at 31 December 2013 are variable-rate borrowings
which carry interest ranging from HIBOR + 1.1% to PBOC (2012:

HIBOR + 0.9% to PBOC) per annum.

R-Z—=F+-A=+—H8 ' BT
BEARZEZEBE  FRENTEHRT
BEFEBIMAEEFRARRBITAE
TE(ZE—ZF - BBRITAERE
IOCEEFEARBITFIE) o
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30. BANK BORROWINGS(COminued)

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings is 1.1% to
6% (2012: 1.73% to 5.6%) per annum.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities

30.

BITEE W

REBEBITEEZEEMNE(NERE]
HFR)BENTFFEFNERIAEZCE(Z
T——F 1 73EE56E)TE

RITEERETIINEEEREM
REERAINE R EHE 2 TR

to which they relate:

2013 2012
—EB-=F -4
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx TBTT

United States dollars ESV 552,146 473,265
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,832,042 3,632,572
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERTRAZ
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE Xl gk 2 ¢E] Xl
000 HK$’000 000 HK$'000
TR FAT T FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: &% EE0.10/% 7T
=3l
At 1 January 2012, R-E——%F—f1
31 December 2012 and —H ZEF——F
31 December 2013 +-—A=+—HK
TE—=F+_f
=+ —H 20,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 300,000
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32.

33.

SPECIAL RESERVE

Special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference between the
net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation in 2006 and (ii) the reduction in the registered
capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary established in the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company and the shareholders
of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively. The
Scheme has taken effect after obtaining the approval from the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The Scheme would be valid for a period of 10 years. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in the Company
to eligible participants who contribute to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Company and include (i) any employee or proposed
employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any executive
director), consultants or advisers of or to the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The subscription price of the Company’s share in respect of any
option granted under the Scheme must be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company.

32.

33.

45 5 it #hm

REEZFRIFE R RBENE AR
ZEEFEENR _TTNFHITEEE
EEF AUIEM BT AR BIRDEER
HEZBEREE i) —BERPRERZE
2EMB AT EMEDR -

BB

RRRBRREEEC T 2R RIR =
ZEHFRAATNRBR-ZTLFRA
“tHRBHERR R Z BEBRE S
(T8 ) - ZEEN—TELFEH
NAEFERMETZERER ]
AR -

ZA AR TE - EFEABIER
AERSEA TR B RERNR BN
ZEEBRE - AEBB2EALREAR
RARBEERRBNBERZAL &
EO)ARR] - HAERM B A RS
SERALEzER(TRERERERDZ
ERESEERREE (THERBEFR
B AEREANTES)  HAEH
kB ¢ (i) IR IRRITE R (BIRELIF
HITEE) ARAERMEARRE
MR E TR « (i) EARASEBIEARRK
BRRMEMEREEERREHRE MR
B2 HER « (VAEBESEMHIREE
B2EMER ¢ (V)EARAEE L ER
RIREBRIRHEME - FAEIEMBRM
SERZ ALTHER ¢ R(vi)REBIEAK
B AR MEMEIRE B 2 EARIR
REBEMKE R RS EFAPIREER
P TIEMESZFHBA -

ERR R AT B 2 B B AT
MR RN 2 REEE BT IA
TEREER ()RR ROETHER
BRE BN EAEER) BT
AMERARBTE ()RR TR
ZRELERERDBHIAEEER
2R B RERARETE 2 T
& R()VARARBHZEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 =& — =44 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+_A=+—HItFE

33.

138

SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from
the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon the payment of
a consideration of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, and in the absence of such determination, from the
date upon which the offer for the grant of the option is accepted but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. The
Directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period
for which an option must be held, any performance targets that must
be achieved and any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the
options can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the share capital of the Company then in issue
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company and KCHL in
general meetings.
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33.
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SEALTARERERBEBEBREZ
BEF28 KA - BRI NRE1ETE
MBITEERHE - BUBRENNESE
ERGBREARA 2 SR MBERTTE
HEBEEMBE  AhEEBRER
Mg s A% - WIMERIER
THRERERBIRER D AR +F
Z AR EARZA B ZIRFPE LK
XA - B 2ERBR2EAL
EITEARH 2 BEBRERNVARE
ZEEHE  TAATERZERBRBE
RAERIE MR T 2 1M -

RIEZ A B 2 A B LB A HE (3L
i E N eI IREA 8 R AR BME
HibBEBEAEA B 2GR KB 2B
SR ) BATER ] T RITZARA]
B in B A N SEBBN I EZFTEIE
HE BT BE210% °

RIBZ A B R AR BRI E AR BB
RETEMARE MR ARITERAFITRE
ZEABBREEITERRA TEITZAR
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33. SHARE OPTIONS (coninued) 33. BABRE
Balance at
31 December Exercise
Balance at Transferred 2012 and price
Date of grant 1 January 2012 during the year 2013 per share Exercisable period
R=Z—Z=fF
H-—=f R-—B—=%
—A—H t=A=t+-8
& A Z ek RERER Z gk BRITEE THED
Granted to the Directors
KTEF
21 March 2011 64,000,000 (10,000,000) 54,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
—EZ——%F=ZA=+—H 6.54875C 17 May 2017 (note)
—T——%=f
;+ AzxE
—ET—+F
A+
Granted to employees
KTIES
21 March 2011 36,000,000 10,000,000 46,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
—EZ——F=ZA=+—H 6.54875T 17 May 2017 (note)
—T——=f
;+ AzxE
—E—tF
HA+EHE (FFEE)
100,000,000 - 100,000,000
Exercisable at:
RUAT BERR] F17fE
1 January 2012
—T——F—Hf—H 25,000,000
31 December 2012
—2——%
+=—A=+—H 50,000,000
31 December 2013
—E-=F
+=ZA=+—H 75,000,000

Note:  25% of the total share options are vested immediately at the date of grant.
The remaining 75% will be split evenly into three lots and will be vested
at 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$6.3.

On 21 March 2011, the share options were granted and the estimated
fair values were approximately HK$114,945,000.

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 100,000,000 (2012: 100,000,000) shares
representing approximately 3.33% (2012: 3.33%) of the issued share
capital.

MiEE . EEBEREATEZ25%MN K L A A
KR - AT 75% KT A= -
RZF——-F —T—=FKR_%
—ME=ZA-+—-HEE - BERD
%%mfa$2ﬂ%%mwﬁgﬁas
BT o

BEBRERN-—Z——F=A=-+—H
B ZEEEBERENGBGTAFEY
7/114,945,00078 7T °

R_E—=F+_A=+—8 " &
EBBREE T FRITHRMDE
27 /2 100,000,000 f% ( =& — = F :

100,000,0000% ) + HHE R B ZHITIRAL
3.33%(=FE— =4 : 3.33%) °
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33.

34.

SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

The fair values of the options granted are calculated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as

ERBELEBEREATERER IR -
HRATHEEERAGE - ZRANE

follows: AR
2011
—FT—%F
Weighted average share price on the date of grant R BE 2 NEFHR(E HK$6.46
6.46/57C
Exercise price TEB HK$6.54
6.54/87C
Expected volatility TEHERR 1R 34.42%
34.42[8
Expected life TEHAF HA 4.1105.1 years
41E514F

Risk-free rate 2 3 b Al =R

Expected divided yield FEHARG B =&

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the previous one year. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$12,916,000 (2012: HK$30,847,000) for the year ended 31
December 2013 in relation to share options granted by the Company.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the option. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

In April 2012, the Group further acquired 55.27% equity interest in
Linkfit, a company engaged in investment holding whose subsidiaries
are principally engaged in hotel ownership and operation in the
PRC, from independent third parties at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$214,906,000.
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1.49% to 1.81%
1.49E =181
5.66% to 6.18%
5.66/Z£6.182

EER B IR AR B EFRERBERIE

B - 2RAMAERFRREEEY

TRIEEN  TERHEITAZERE
VB REGHELRE -

HE_Z—=F+_-_A=+—HItF
B AEERARRRENELERE
MR EEEL12,916,000E T (ZF
——4F : 30,847,000/57T) °

B 75— &F B HT B e AR B A &
BrRBEREQTE SAEELBRER
FEAANZHEEBRRDREENRE
fEETEL - BEBBREEERT ST
ERRNTRZHME

W B B BB 22 A

RZT—ZFNA  RNEBERBLE=
FiE— SRR EE55 27 % I RE - B A
—MIRBEER AR EWNBAREER
PR EES MEEREER - BeR
{B#9/4214,906,00078 7T °
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34. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES  34.

(continued)

s B B B 1

*@*ﬁ?%zl&%@ﬁﬁzsa 67% % 1E 2 i &
N A o FA UK B B 2% 55.27% IR AE 5E AR
B 2% X B 7K A R) R 5 84.94% 2 [T

Linkfit was an associate company of the Group in which the Group
held an equity interest of 29.67%. Upon completion of the acquisition
of 55.27% equity interest in Linkfit, Linkfit became a 84.94% owned % -

subsidiary of the Company. This acquisition was accounted for by the 5

acquisition method of accounting.

Acquisition related costs incurred were insignificant and were
recognised under administrative expenses in the current year in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

NAE] o IR AN e

bi=Ees

FOEARR ©

PREEZ HBAWBRALTEKX - RA
FEEE

2% WTTE&%;)EH IETE§ s ©

HK$’000
FIT
Consideration transferred: BERE:
Cash paid SRS 214,906
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities REBEHSINBRERAZEER
recognised at the date of acquisition: BEZATRE:
Investment properties "B 138,100
Properties, plant and equipment Y - B kB 514,622
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERE 112,000
Inventories rE 5,407
Trade and other receivables and prepayments H 5 &k EAEW R R FER 0B 8,539
Bank balances and cash RITHESBREE S 9,467
Trade and other payables H 5 R EMEMIRR (166,148)
Taxation payable FERTFRIR (4,819)
Bank borrowings HRITEE (133,457)
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A E (94,778)
388,833
Gooduwill arising on acquisition: WEBFFEE2EE -
Consideration transferred EEINRE 214,906
Add: Fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit o 2RI AER RS N THE 115,368
Add: Non-controlling interest N FEIERR R 58,5659
Less: Net assets acquired W TR ERE (388,833)
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WE—RBREARZEER
of the acquisition of a subsidiary: REEEYRY -
Cash consideration paid BENBESRE (214,906)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITEBRLIAES 9,467
(205,439)
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34.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit held by the Group
and the fair value of investment properties, properties, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the date of acquisition
was estimated by Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified valuer not connected to the Group, by reference to market
evidence of transaction price for similar properties.

The fair value of other assets acquired and liabilities assumed
approximately the gross contractual amounts. The Group recognised
the non-controlling interests at the proportionate share of the net
assets of Linkfit.

The Group recognised a gain of approximately HK$30,377,000 as a
result of the remeasurement of previously held interest in Linkfit. The
fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit was estimated by the
management of the Group with reference to per-share fair value of the
purchase of 55.27% as the control premium is insignificant.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Linkfit contributed
HK$47,087,000 to the Group’s turnover and made a loss of
HK$36,356,000 for the period between the date of acquisition and
the end of 2012.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2012, total Group
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been
HK$12,725,389,000 and profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
would have been HK$1,171,269,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2012, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
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REERH - NREBERASE 2B EE
BZRFERREDE - WE - BER
REBELIANEEFIRZ ATE - Tz
AEENEERE 2 B A BREENE
[EEFEARARDL2ZRUNER
SERZ T RERMAE -

HihB W EERERERABEZATFE
HAKNBERE - AEBIRELEEE
EESFE M L I B R PA Bt 3 2 FE 4 AR A
HREMTERAFE 2B EER - X
EERERUW £ 430,377,000/ 7T ° FAT
BH g AT EEREBEE
B2EWRESS27T% S 2 R A FE
®“ET  RAREREZETHEAE
j(o

Be-_Z2——F+-_A=+—H1t
FE HEUBAPBRE-_FT—=F
ERB - BEHAEEZEEEIH
47,087,000 7t & £% 15 /518 36,356,000
VBT ©

WREN —T——F—A—HB%K ' &
E-T-F+ZA-+HUEFES
B & AT A12,725,389,0008 7T
MEE—FT——F+-A=1+—HIEF
JE 3% M #8 A1,171,269,00058 7T © 2
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35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 35. ¥& R HAit&IE

2013 2012
—=2—=fF —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET

Capital expenditure contracted for but not DATAME R R A BT RE

provided in the consolidated financial ER B E 2 B AR
statements for:
— acquisition of properties, plant and —BEYE - BE &S
equipment 130,513
— capital injection in an unlisted equity —EBILIRAIE
investment 6,308
Other expenditure contracted for but not BEETHVERNEGRE B
provided in the consolidated financial ER s 2 bR
statements for:
— acquisition and other expenditure relating to  — & BRI 2 WHE K&
properties held for development HpAxk 288,957 1,488,102
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. EETAL
2013 2012
=5 —EF—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA :
Minimum lease payments charged to the FRARGEEBRERIRZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss HIRAL I
during the year 3,374
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KERAONTATEERETHAE
certain of its office properties and all lease payments are fixed and ¥ENZEE - IBEHANR 28
predetermined. BETEMERERE °
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KERY

R HEARE B - AEERERT
B2 AN BN 2 BOR K
BRTAIEIRIEA

2013 2012
=5 —EF—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T

673 672
2,078 2,039
17,733 17,405

20,484 20,116

36 OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
Within one year —FR
After one year but not later than five years —FRERAFENAN
After five years A&
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEEEBHAA BEA
Rental income credited to the consolidated FRNFFAGZEEREE
income statement of profit and loss during ZHEsWA
the year
Licence fee income credited to the consolidated FRFH ALGLAIBRR Y
statement of profit or loss during the year RIEFERBIA

68,415 26,449

120,000 120,000

188,415 146,449

The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for
periods up to seven years at fixed predetermined amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of leasing of investment properties and licenced assets (note
17) which fall due as follows:

AEBZREMEORRTEEZER
HEBETFIRAL - BEERRBLEF -

REEMNERER  REEERED
¥ KR ERAE (NE17) 2 R R
LBRY > AREREBERERER
e

2013 2012
2= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT 57T

Within one year —FR
After one year but not later than five years —FEEREFR
After five years AFE

172,495 133,374
249,638 175,077
282,696 282,696

704,829 591,147
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36. OPERATING LEASES (continueq)

The Group licences its Licenced Assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

o Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

° After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$74,064,000 as at 31 December 2013 in respect of
bank mortgage loans granted to purchasers of the Group’s
properties. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values
of these financial guarantee contracts of the Group are
insignificant at initial recognition and the Directors consider
that the possibility of default of the parties involved is remote,
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception of
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period
as at 31 December 2013.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees
will be released by banks upon delivery of the properties
to the purchasers and completion of the registration of the
relevant mortgaged properties.

36.

37.

:%g % *ﬂ /%I‘J (%)

RIBEREE A - NSRBI EERE
ANEREEEREENT -

. EREEAET @A  &&
BN EREANITEE2REEE
RS —AFEET LR
RELAERBAN YRS —FX
171,000,000/ ok & 5 E E 1
FNEMSTE  RILREFERRD

=3
AR °

. ERECHAET—@REK  &&E
BRIV 23 YN unk N2y S 1
AEEEEEM - 2EBIBEL
RBE(E R hhe

@) RZE—=F+=A=+—8H
AEERBETAEEMEE
FMIRITIRBE RIREERY
74,064,0007C ° EFRA - A&
BEZEWBEREGOHATER
MRERHTTELN - AEER
RBEEFEONERSHRE - B
bt RIERALRIF RN ZF
—=fF+-A=t+—HHREHM
HERE B EEREE -

BERDANEENEERTEE
AMRETIRIT - ZEERHR
DEES L/ EN TR TEl i
YR B RIR A IRTTARRR ©
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 37. RAREE W

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the ultimate
holding company and certain subsidiaries of the Company
and the Company (the “Respondents”) were named as a
defendant in the Supreme Court of Bermuda in respect of an
allegation of the affairs of KBCF had been and or were being
conducted in a manner which was oppressive or unfairly
prejudicial to the non-controlling shareholders of KBCF.
The petitioner was seeking an order to the Defendants to
repurchase all of the KBCF’s shares held by petitioner at the
price to be fixed by a valuer or Supreme Court of Bermuda. As
at 31 December 2013, the case has not yet reached the stage
of drafting witness statements and is still at an early stage in
the litigation. As a result, management and the lawyer of the
Group are difficult to provide the estimates on the outcome of

(0) BE_Z——F+-_A=+—
BLEFE  RRERARRAE
REAETHEB AR RARF
(ME&EDEBRES AR
ZHEKBCFE T &R THETT
B 73 AT BER A 2T F
MKBCFIFZERIIR - 2FBAF
SOERRHI M SR A EM R AR
ESMERETENERERRR
BEBAFFKBCFED X =
Z——F+_A=+—H %
EHERETEEE AR
B MaRRADEM R - B
It A E IR E K 2 A B A

the case. Accordingly, no provision for liability has been made Bt EBSEH2ER - Bt
in connection with this claim by the Group. REBBERZBRTIRAT
B -

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which was registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme which was established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group and
are invested in funds under the control of independent trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme are members of both the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000 effective from June 2012.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension schemes is to
make the required contributions.

146 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEE ERIER A R A &

38.

BRIREREHE

REBRIFF2 00— HIR B SR RFT 3]
M) T 2 e BB SRET 8 ([ B 3R ARAT
2 RREa M ATESEIN =TT
TFEF+Z ARz HIEAESETE
([8TEEFE]) - ZEFEIZEEHRAR
SECZEESHFE  WIRERBBEL
EREAREIZES - R BTESTE
ZHIE2NBERNGEIZIES - Rk
BABERKTEIRAEESTEIZK
B MABR_ZETEF+_AgziE
MARERZ B VAL NRESF
Bl o REBRBESHE  EXRHEES
B /AL B AW A L% M EI{EH
BT FENARERZEAM
BEUA IR 525,000/ 7T °

TENBARZEE RTEBMEEZ
BREMENRTENE - ZFHEAR
A E X2 K — B2 R ARKE
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME  38.

(continued)

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$21,001,000
(2012: HK$21,622,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2013, contributions of HK$2,147,000 (2012:
HK$1,763,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end
of the reporting period.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year:

BIRBREHE

MEBERIETE - BB BIRERE
BRIRET B 1 2 5740 4521,001,000
BT (ZZE— 4 : 21,622,000 HT)
EEERFPHR RZT—=F+=
A=+—8 RHEEHEINHEHK
2,147,000 L(=ZF— =4 : 1,763,000
BIC) WA FZERTE - ZERER
HEMBEREB DL -

BEALRS

AEBEMEATHEFRETIEAR
ST

(i) Sales of goods and drilling services provided (i)
to fellow subsidiaries

(i) Purchase of goods from fellow subsidiaries

(i) Sales of laminates and copper to
a shareholder with significant influence
over ultimate holding company

(iv) Purchase of drill bits and machineries
from a shareholder with significant influence
over the ultimate holding company

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
HERMBAREEE R K
IR FLARTS 1,508,609 1,618,568
(iy MERMBARREER 925,677 841,381
(i) 1A ERARIERE A F]
BEERFENNREHE
%= iR & iR 819,290 980,479
(iv) MEREIERAT]
BB RFENHRE
PRAE TR K i =S 228,411 160,931
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEAXTRF »
(continued)
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEASME
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key FRN BENEMTEEBASZME
management during the year is as follows: mr
2013 2012
=5 —EF—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Short-term benefits EEEF 78,495 78,998
Post-employment benefits RIRERT 713 733
Share-based payments AR50 6,976 19,743
86,184 99,474
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined with EERFETHRABZHESZEER]
reference to the performance of individuals and market trends. BTIRBEMIGBAEBET -
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013
and 2012 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration and paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital
HEARER EML BRTRER

BRREEHY B EMER
Excel First Investments Limited British Virgin Islands* US$1
ERRAERAF EERREE E
KBCF Bermuda* US$72,250,000

BRE 72,250,000% T
Hong Kong Copper Foil Limited British Virgin Islands* US$47,057,290

EBRRHE 47,057,290% 7T
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RZEB-—=FfR-_FT-—-F+=A
=+—R  ARREEBHBRR ZFHE
T

Proportion of
the ownership
interest held by

the Group Principal activities

A&EEfEE

ERERRL D TRER

2012
—E-CF
%

100 Investment holding
REER

64.57  Investment holding
RERR

64.57  Investment holding and
licencing of properties

RERRRNE ERRE
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

BRREERL

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration and paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital
KEAR LR TR, CRITRAR
BEREE DR B EmER
Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated PRC! US$7,615,000
Material Company Limited A 7,615,000
BB (RRE) BEMEERAR
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates PRC! US$29,466,000
Co. Limited HE 29,466,000% 1T
BE (M) RERERAR
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper PRC US$17,936,546
Laminates Co. Ltd. HED! 17,936,546% T
BB(HR)EEARERAR
Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC! US$30,000,000
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd. A 30,000,000% 7T
BEEFHHOIR)BERAR
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) PRC! HK$242,800,000
Co., Ltd. HE 242,800,000/ 1T
TP EEERERDA
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical PRC US$32,000,000
Co., Ltd. HED! 32,000,000% T
BECIH)LIBRAR
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC! US$32,010,000
Co., Ltd. HE 32,010,000% 7T
BERERBIL)ARAR
Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre Glass PRC US$13,700,000
Co. Limited FE 13,700,000% ¢
BECEN) BREEERAR
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC! RMB250,000,000
Petrochemical Company Limited A AR #250,000,0007T
BEEEED)OILARRT
# These are investment holding companies which have no specific principal

place of operations.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Wholly

Foreign-owned Enterprises.

0. XRAIFXFEMB AT Z

IS

Proportion of
the ownership
interest held by

the Group
AEBFRE

Principal activities

IRER

100 Manufacture and distribution
of bleached kraft paper
SUERDHTANE

100 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

SEL D HEEAR

100 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

RERDHERAR

100 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates
RE R HEIAER

100  Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

SEL D HEEAR

100 Manufacture and distribution
of chemicals
SERDH T EM

100 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates
RE R HEAER

100 Manufacture and distribution
of glass fabric

S BE T

100 Manufacture and distribution
of chemicals
SERDH T EM

# ULERR IR ERE AT WEFEE
EEEIE o

! LSRRI BELE 2 A ETE

PR3 o
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

(@ General information of subsidiaries
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of
these subsidiaries operate in the PRC. The principal activities
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

40. XRAFEFEMB AT Z

=3 e

LR REERRIBREREEE
BREEZARFMBRR - EFRR
IR EMMB AR Z FEEBNITE

S A AR R B 17 (TS
B% -

@ HEBARAZ—REH
REEHRERE - AQFE
BHAKE L FNEREE A
BRAF - ZEMERRAE D
RPBEZE -  ZFHBARZ

FEEBBMOT
Principal
Principal activities FTE% place of business FEX#b 5, Number of subsidiaries
ML REE

2012
Manufacture and sale %3 & $5& The PRC o] 20
of laminates ZEIRAER Thailand = 1
Macau SEPY 2
23
Properties LJES Hong Kong BE -
The PRC =n) 7
United Kingdom BE 1
8
Others EAh Hong Kong B 34
The PRC =n) 7
41
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interests and voting rights held Profit (loss) allocated to non-

AAAEEMBLAALZ

IS

BEERFERERZHF
EEMBLRFE
RS EAIFE R,
AREFREHB AR -

(b)

Accumulated non-controlling

controlling interests interests
AREFERER
Ayl ) PHEZI i

2013
S=E

HK$'000.
TR

012 2013

=
HK$'000
TR

2012

HKS'000
TEL

HK$000
TEL

1,520 (3678) B A

98,213

- 1’1 06'243

1,082,521

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal place  FRAUHER
Name of subsidiary ~ HEARER of business IEEHHY by non-controlling interests
FERESREZRERERR
RERLH
KBCF KBCF Bermuda? BRE 35.43% 35.43%
Indviduely mmaterial B FEARER L
subsciies vithnon- — FUFEANE
contoling interests %)
# This is an investment holding company which has no specific

principal place of operation.

# AR TIRAEZER AR - I
S Shaat o F S iibi
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. AR EMBLATZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY H#Ew

(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) %FEj{}'FEHﬁEéZ#
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EMBARFB )
KBCF KBCF

2013 2012
—E-=fF —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT 57T

Current assets mENEE 1,292,624 1,827,309

Non-current assets IEREEE 1,657,610 1,062,511

Current liabilities MEAE 71,562

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 782 Al3FH A FE(GRERS 2,845,132 2,770,553

Non-controlling interests eI AR 33,540

Revenue -] 468,782 490,039

Expenses, other gains and losses Fisz - H s R g ia 460,470 492,630
Profit (loss) for the year NFEm A (E18) 8,312
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the KAEFEB AEEZET
Company (F18)
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling AN E)FEFE RS R o R (i
interests of the Company (E518)
Profit attributable to the non-controlling KBCFIE#ZE %t 2 FE (3
interests of KBCF
Profit (loss) for the year REEZ RN (EE)

152 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 BiEEHRIEREIR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. AR EMBLATZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =31

(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) %FEj{}'FEHﬁEéZ#
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZEMBARFE )
KBCF (continued) KBCF(#)

2013 2012

=l s —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Other comprehensive income attributable to R &)#58 A EIH B 2

owners of the Company L& 4,144
Other comprehensive income attributable to  Zx /73 &) JE{2E B A 25 FE 15 Bt

non-controlling interests of the Company 2mEkEE 2,274
Other comprehensive income (expense) KBCFIEZEfS o AL Ho M 2

attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ E Uz (Fs2)

of KBCF (20)
Other comprehensive income for the year — ZANEE Eih 2 E 6,398
Total comprehensive income (expense) AATHEA AEA2ERE

attributable to owners of the Company (P )45 47,502 (2,553)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AR B IR RE RS FE (L

attributable to non-controlling interest >EWRE(FAZ)RE

of the Company 26,065 (1,401)
Total comprehensive income attributable to  KBCF3E1E IR #E S fE(E 2 H

the non-controlling interests of KBCF Wzs4a58E 4,983 7,761
Total comprehensive income for the year NEE PR EE 78,550 3,807
Net cash inflow from operating activities AR B TR S AR R 158,806 419,718
Net cash outflow from investing activities EEKB R R (4,732) (8,436)
Net cash outflow from financing activities R E IR S (2,972) (10,930)
Net cash inflow REmAFE 151,102 400,352
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B TEBE2

RESULTS ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-ZA=+—HLFE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ZEENF ZE-EF ZE——F - F e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

T FHT FET FET FET
Revenue | 9,070,983 13,055,205 13,204,979 12,483,227 | . il
Profit before taxation MR AR 1,793,940 2,636,467 1,534,488 1,345,446 1,393,151
Income tax expense FrS R (128,117) (269,783) (176,650) (179,509) (183,268)
Profit for the year ANEF i F 1,665,823 2,366,684 1,357,838 1,165,941 1,209,883
Attributable to: EIHDEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIESYE N 1,648,031 2,280,380 1,324,958 1,163,941 1,207,182
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR R RS 17,792 86,304 32,880 2,000 2,701
1,665,823 2,366,684 1,357,838 1,165,941 1,209,883
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=—B=+—8
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ZETNF ZE-TF ZT——F T F et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FBT FHT FAT FAT FET
Total assets BERE 13,699,718 16,439,825 18,061,463 19,273,833 = | o <
Total liabilities BE8E (4,487,190)  (5,586,438)  (6,270,811)  (6,383,147) | /i o))
Net assets BEFE 9,212,528 10,853,387 11,790,652 12,890,686 | il

Equity attributable to owners ARQEIEFEE A
of the Company FE{RERS 8,327,709 9,869,990 10,744,986 11,808,165 & = it -k
Non-controlling interests IR 884,819 983,397 1,045,666 1,082,521 1,106,243

Total equity BAREEE 9,212,628 10,853,387 11,790,652 12,890,686 « = ‘= -
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FINANGIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
ZAYNCIWA bt

The financial information of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is RARRZE—ZFRZZE—ZF+ZA=+—BZHB

as follows: BRI :
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—C—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T

Total assets BEBE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EBARZIEE 5,711,740 5,711,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUF B A B 11,571,382 9,771,960
Other receivables and prepayments H Ao B BR R R FE S 3B 51,004 70,504
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIES 14,307 234,552
17,348,433 15,788,756

Total liabilities afEEs
Other payables HAb AR 50,396 68,996
Amounts due to subsidiaries JENI B A RIFUE 4,245,294 3,820,655
Bank borrowings RITIEE 5,291,684 4,072,237
9,587,374 7,961,888
Net assets BEZE 7,761,059 7,826,868

Capital and reserves RS R (8

Share capital REA 300,000 300,000
Reserves (note) fra e (5D 7,461,059 7,526,868
Total equity N CE 7,761,059 7,826,868
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RNRBZHHFER

Note: B o -
Share
Share options Special Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
BriE
R RE REEREE R RE =T aE
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHT FHET FHT
(note i)
(P 7E)
At 1 January 2012 R-Z——%—H—H 1,097,104 69,052 5,427,130 1,132,955 7,726,241
Profit for the year and total NFE M R AT E 2R
comprehensive income for the year fakc] - - - 69,780 69,780
Recognition of equity-settled share RAEREER MR
based payments - 30,847 - - 30,847
Final dividend paid for the year ended ~ BfNEE—ZT——F+_f
31 December 2011 =+ —HIEFE 2 RS - - - (150,000) (150,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year ended BNEHZE—-Z——F+_—H
31 December 2012 =+—BIEFEZFHRE - - - (150,000) (150,000)
- 30,847 - (300,000) (269,153)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H 1,097,104 99,899 5,427,130 902,735 7,526,368
Profit for the year and total REEHMNEAFERE
comprehensive income for the year it - - - 431,275 431,275
Recognition of equity-settled share RS EER MDA R
based payments - 12,916 - - 12,916
Final dividend paid for the year ended ~ B #EZE—Z——%+—H
31 December 2012 =+ —BIEFEZ RERE - - - (360,000) (360,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year ended BEfEHZE—Z—=4+_A4
31 December 2013 =T—HIEFEZHREHRE - - - (150,000) (150,000)
- 12,916 - (510,000) (497,084)
At 31 December 2013 R-IE—=F+-A=1+—H 1,097,104 112,815 5,427,130 824,010 7,461,059
Note i:  Special reserves of the Company represents the difference between the net asset MizTi: AEEZERIGEEEHRNENB AT EERE

value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 2006.

HER R RFETEESARARERMETZ
ARREOEEME 2 RHZER
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KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1, No. 12 Science Park East Avenue, Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
BEDHBBRNEEE2MRE RER 12508 E 21 #2148

Tel E5F : (852) 2605 6493 Fax & : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail E : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site #8311t : http://www.kblaminates.com
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